

Health Sciences High and Middle College

HSHMC Board Meeting

Published on April 15, 2025 at 11:32 AM PDT

Date and Time Tuesday April 22, 2025 at 9:30 AM PDT

Sharp Chula Vista Medical Center 751 Medical Center Ct. Chula Vista, CA 91911 SCVMC Boardroom

Join Zoom Meeting https://hshmc.zoom.us/j/3720403229?omn=84046876389 Meeting ID: 372 040 3229 Passcode: Board

Agenda

Location

		Purpose	Presenter	Time
I.	Opening Items			9:30 AM
	A. Record Attendance			1 m
	B. Call the Meeting to Order		Frederick Johnson	1 m

			Purpose	Presenter	Time
	C.	Approve Minutes	Approve Minutes	Frederick Johnson	2 m
		Approve minutes for HSHMC Board Meeting on F	ebruary 24, 202	5	
	D.	Public Comment		Frederick Johnson	5 m
II.	Infe	ormation Items			9:39 AM
	Α.	Student Report		Noor Esmailpour	5 m
	В.	CEO Comments		Ian Pumpian	5 m
	C.	2024-2025 HSHMC Updated Cuyamaca Course List		Dominique Smith	2 m
	D.	LCAP - Overview and Public Presentation of LCAP for HSHMC		Dominique Smith	15 m
III.	CL	OSED SESSION			10:06 AM
	Α.	CEO Evaluation			10 m
IV.	OP	EN SESSION			
V.	Clo	osing Items			10:16 AM
	Α.	Adjourn Meeting		Frederick Johnson	1 m

Coversheet

Approve Minutes

Section: Item: Purpose: Submitted by: Related Material: I. Opening Items C. Approve Minutes Approve Minutes

Minutes for HSHMC Board Meeting on February 24, 2025



Health Sciences High and Middle College

Minutes

HSHMC Board Meeting

Date and Time 星期一二月 24, 2025 at 8:00 上午

Location Sharp Prebys Innovation and Education Center 8695 Spectrum Center Blvd. San Diego, CA 92123 3rd Floor - Boardroom 323

Join Zoom Meeting https://hshmc.zoom.us/j/3720403229?omn=84046876389 Meeting ID: 372 040 3229 Passcode: Board

Directors Present A. Carpenter, B. Steineckert, D. Gross, D. White, F. Johnson, J. Broad, J. Kramer, M. Byrd, S. Evans

Directors Absent
None

Ex Officio Members Present I. Pumpian, S. Johnson

Non Voting Members Present

I. Pumpian, S. Johnson

Guests Present

G. Ottinger

I. Opening Items

A. Record Attendance

B. Call the Meeting to Order

F. Johnson called a meeting of the board of directors of Health Sciences High and Middle College to order on Monday Feb 24, 2025 at 8:00 AM.

C. Approve Minutes

D. Gross made a motion to approve the minutes from HSHMC Board Meeting on 12-03-24.

D. White seconded the motion.

The board **VOTED** to approve the motion.

Roll Call

D. Gross	Aye
B. Steineckert	Aye
J. Broad	Aye
S. Evans	Aye
D. White	Aye
A. Carpenter	Aye
J. Kramer	Aye
F. Johnson	Aye
M. Byrd	Aye

D. Approve Minutes

M. Byrd made a motion to approve the minutes from HSHMC Emergency Board Meeting on 01-22-25.

D. Gross seconded the motion.

The board **VOTED** to approve the motion.

Roll Call

F. JohnsonAyeJ. BroadAyeA. CarpenterAyeB. SteineckertAyeM. ByrdAyeD. WhiteAyeS. EvansAye

Roll Call D. Gross Aye J. Kramer Aye

II. Information Items

A. HSHMC Student Representative

HSHMC's student representative, Noor Esmailpour, was unable to attend the meeting due to a family emergency.

B. CEO Comments

Pumpian discussed/updated the following with the Board:

- Building update HSHMC is working through the challenges that come with construction. The school will be moving up to the 3rd and 4th floors during spring break so that work can be completed on the 1st and 2nd floors. The building will not be able to be used for summer school, so it will be held at nearby Central Elementary, which will require clean up and preparation since it has not been inhabited for some time. Pumpian noted that the HSHMC staff has been great in how they are dealing with all the construction and location challenges. The technology infrastructure is being built now and will make the classrooms really something to be proud of when construction is completed.
- Marketing and Outreach Efforts for the 2025-2026 enrollment is ongoing. In previous years, an informational notice was provided in Sharp's November and January all-staff newsletter. This year, to increase efforts, Sharp will be sending out a similar notice every few weeks until the end of the school year to try to increase enrollment from Sharp families. Pumpian asked the board for other ideas to market and recruit and the board suggested various viable options that will be explored and followed up on. It was noted that given the new facility, there is room to accept more students in the coming year than previous years.
- **Grant Opportunity** Ian will be working with Scott on a Prebys grant that Sharp is seeking. The grant would help to provide students with post-secondary pipeline employment options. The grant would support a Youth Development position through Sharp, a Social Worker and an Academic Tutor. Scott is coordinating a meeting between Ian and Rita who is interested is supporting Sharp's efforts on this grant. Scott also suggested adding Susan Stone to the HSHMC board when a position becomes available, noting that she would be an asset to these efforts as well.
- **District Interest** During HSHMC's renewal process with the District, the District showed an increased interest in collaborating with HSHMC for grants and such. Ian will be following up on these opportunities.
- **CNA Clinicals** Given the increase in the number of CNA students at HSHMC, the expense for training has gone up with the current contracted vendor. HSHMC is actively looking for another partner to train the students, i.e. the community college

district. Scott suggested Ian reach back out to Marsha Feurst to see if there is an option with her college. HSHMC has been using Sharp Chula Vista for clinicals and needs to be sure, with the increase in numbers, that they can support the larger number of students. Deanna will follow up with Broc Arnaiz.

• Updated Sharp MOU - Ian asked Scott about the best way to update the current MOU with Sharp. Scott will follow up with Susan Stone.

III. Open Session: Action Items

A. 2024-2025 Second Interim Financial Report

Greg Ottinger reviewed the second interim financial report and noted that overall, HSHMC is stable and projected to remain so for the next several years. While the school is stable, HSHMC may make some financial moves to preserve grant funds for future years to be sure they remain steady while they wait and see what may happen with the Federal financial landscape.

D. Gross made a motion to approve the 2024-2025 Second Interim Financial report. J. Kramer seconded the motion.

The board **VOTED** to approve the motion.

Roll Call

B. Steineckert	Aye
D. Gross	Aye
D. White	Aye
S. Evans	Aye
M. Byrd	Aye
A. Carpenter	Aye
J. Kramer	Aye
J. Broad	Aye
F. Johnson	Aye

B. LCAP Mid-Year Progress Report

Greg Ottinger explained the need for the Mid-Year LCAP. The report contains the school's goals, budgets, and actions to support the goals. This snapshot report shows that HSHMC's goals are currently trending well in the areas that can be measured mid-year.

J. Broad made a motion to approve the LCAP mid-year progress report.

D. Gross seconded the motion.

The board **VOTED** to approve the motion.

Roll Call

S. Evans	Aye
J. Broad	Aye

Roll Call

M. Byrd	Aye
A. Carpenter	Aye
J. Kramer	Aye
F. Johnson	Aye
B. Steineckert	Aye
D. Gross	Aye
D White	

D. White Aye

IV. Open Session - Consent Agenda Items

- A. Admissions Policy
- B. Bylaws
- C. Conflict of Interest Code
- D. Independent Study Policy
- E. Suspension/Expulsion Policy
- F. Title IX Policy
- G. 2025-2026 Independent Auditor Contract

H. Board Secretary/Treasurer and Vice President Appointment

Item H was pulled from the consent agenda for a separate discussion and vote. Fred Johnson recommended the appointment of Janie Kramer as Secretary/Treasurer and Dan Gross as Vice Chair to the HSHMC Board of Directors, noting that both have volunteered to serve as such.

J. Broad made a motion to approve the appointment of Janie Kramer asSecretary/Treasurer, and Dan Gross as Vice Chair to the HSHMC Board of Directors.A. Carpenter seconded the motion.

The board **VOTED** to approve the motion.

Roll Call

M. Byrd	Aye
D. White	Aye
J. Broad	Aye
A. Carpenter	Aye
J. Kramer	Abstain
F. Johnson	Aye
S. Evans	Aye
B. Steineckert	Aye
D. Gross	Abstain

I. Consent Agenda Vote on Items A-H

Item H was pulled from the consent agenda for a separate vote.

Greg Ottinger and Sheri Johnson reviewed the items A-G on the consent agenda and responded to any questions or clarifications. Dan Gross suggested that documents be made available via "shared-screen" during the meeting for easier reference. It was also noted that a "red-line" version might be helpful for documents that were previously board approved and need to be re-approved due to minor changes.

D. Gross made a motion to approve the consent agenda items A-G.

D. White seconded the motion.

The board **VOTED** to approve the motion.

Roll Call

J. Kramer	Aye
S. Evans	Aye
A. Carpenter	Aye
D. White	Aye
F. Johnson	Aye
D. Gross	Aye
M. Byrd	Aye
B. Steineckert	Aye
J. Broad	Aye

V. Closing Items

A. Adjourn Meeting

Scott Evans let Ian know that Sharp HealthCare acquired a suite of 16 seats for the San Diego Football Club (soccer) season. The games are played on Saturday evenings at Snap Dragon Stadium. Scott offered to host HSHMC students/staff at a game(s). To do so, 2 of the seats must be used by Sharp employees. Ian appreciated the offer and will follow up on the opportunity.

To increase awareness within Sharp about HSHMC, Brent suggested that it might be helpful to invite speakers (students/staff) from HSHMC to come share information about the school at various Sharp employee events.

There being no further business to be transacted, and upon motion duly made, seconded and approved, the meeting was adjourned at 9:02 \pm 7.

Respectfully Submitted, S. Johnson

Documents used during the meeting

• 1 - FY 2024-25 Second Interim Report - Health Sciences.xlsx

- 24-25_LCAP_Mid-Year_Update.pdf
- A Admissions Policy 2024 For BOARD APPROVAL 2-25-2025.pdf
- B Bylaws and Resoultions Amended for Board Approval 2-24-2025.pdf
- C Conflict of Interest Code For board approval 2-24-2025.pdf
- D HSHMC _ Independent Study Policy For Board Approval 2-24-2025.pdf
- E Suspension_Expulsion Policy 2-24-2025.pdf
- F Title IX Document copy Amended 2025.pdf
- G Auditor Contract.pdf

Coversheet

2024-2025 HSHMC Updated Cuyamaca Course List

Section:II. Information ItemsItem:C. 2024-2025 HSHMC Updated Cuyamaca Course ListPurpose:Submitted by:Related Material:HSHMC Updated Course List Spring 2025.pdf

Attachment "A"

Grossmont-Cuyamaca Community College District and Health Science High and Middle College Charter School 2024-2025 CCAP Updated Course List March 4, 2025

Cuyamaca College Courses Offered at Health Science High and Middle College

1. Course: BIO 130

Title: General Biology I

Scope/Nature: Survey of the basic biological principles with particular emphasis on the molecular and cellular aspects of the organism. The unifying concepts of biology such as organization, metabolism, genetics, and evolution are discussed. AA/AS GE, CSU, CSU GE, IGETC, UC credit limit.

Semester	Section	Units	Enrollment	Meeting Days	Start-End Time	Online FTES	In Person FTES
Spring 2025	4837	3	35	F	8:30-11:35	0	3.5

Total Sections:	1
Total Enrollment:	35
Total Online FTES:	0
Total In-Person FTES:	3.5

2. Course: BIO 131

Title: General Biology I Laboratory

Scope/Nature: Laboratory experiments on the basic biological principles with particular emphasis on the molecular and cellular aspects of the organism. Meets transfer requirements for non-majors. AA/AS GE, CSU, CSU GE, IGETC, UC credit limit.

Semester	Section	Units	Enrollment	Meeting Days	Start-End Time	Online FTES	In Person FTES
Spring 2025	4859	1	35	F	1:00-4:05	0	3.5
	Total Section	ons:	1				
	Total Enroll	ment:	35				
Total Online FTES:		e FTES:	0				
	Total In-Per	rson FTES:	3.5				

3. Course: BUS 110

Title: Introduction to Business

Scope/Nature: Provides a comprehensive view of today's dynamic American business and the global economy. Topics include: starting a small business, satisfying customers, managing operations, motivating employees and building self-managed teams, developing and implementing customer-oriented marketing plans, managing information, managing financial resources, and exploring ethical and social responsibilities of American business. (C-ID BUS 110) (CSU, UC)

Semester	Section	Units	Enrollment	Meeting Days	Start-End Time	Online FTES	In Person FTES
Fall 2024	2578	3	20	Online	Online	2	0

Total Sections:	1
Total Enrollment:	20
Total Online FTES:	2
Total In-Person FTES:	0

4. Course: BUS 111

Title: Entrepreneurship: Starting a Business

Scope/Nature: Provides the prospective small business owner or entrepreneur with the most up-to-date skills necessary in the planning function of opening one's own business. Emphasis is on sources of financing, site locations, legal problems, and marketing, including an overview of web and internet marketing organizational structure, and self-analysis to determine one's personal readiness for entrepreneurship. (CSU)

Semester	Section	Units	Enrollment	Meeting Days	Start-End Time	Online FTES	In Person FTES
Spring 2025	4850	3	30	Online	Online	3	0

Total Sections:	1
Total Enrollment:	0
Total Online FTES:	3
Total In-Person FTES:	0

5. Course: BUS 195

Title: Principles of Money Management **Scope/Nature:** Explores the theories and techniques of managing personal income by setting life planning goals that will culminate in the development of a personal plan for students to manage their finances throughout their lifespan. Within the broad backdrop of business and economics in the United States, topics will include lifelong financial planning, budgeting, managing checking and savings accounts, building and maintaining good credit, retirement, and estate planning, insurance, home ownership, and creating an investment portfolio. (CSU)

Semester	Section	Units	Enrollment	Meeting Days	Start-End Time	Online FTES	In Person FTES
Fall 2024	2581	3	50	Online	Online	5	0
Spring 2025	4851	3	20	Online	Online	2	0
Summer 2025	TBD	3	40	Online	Online	4	0

Total Sections:	3
Total Enrollment:	110
Total Online FTES:	11
Total In-Person FTES:	0

6. Course: COMM 122

Title: Public Speaking

Scope/Nature: Theory and techniques of public speaking in a democratic society. Discovery, development, and criticism of ideas in public discourse through research, reasoning, organization, presentation, and evaluation of various types of speeches, including informative and persuasive speeches. AA/AS GE, CSU, CSU GE, IGETC, UC

Semester	Section	Units	Enrollment	Meeting Days	Start-End Time	Online FTES	In Person FTES
Fall 2024	4096	3	30	М	8:30-11:25	3	0
Spring 2025	4842	3	30	М	8:30-11:35	0	3

Total Sections:	2
Total Enrollment:	60
Total Online FTES:	3
Total In-Person FTES:	3

7. Course: ENGL 120

Title: College Composition and Reading

Scope/Nature: Freshman composition course. Students study the elements and principles of composition through the practice of writing expository essays and research papers. Emphasizing the reading and writing processes, revision is stressed as a means of achieving effective skills in reading and writing college-level texts. Analysis of assigned readings stimulates critical thinking and serves as a model of effective writing. Emphasis is on using outside sources as evidence in students' argumentative essays and documenting source

material in MLA format. The course allows students to develop metacognitive awareness of the role writing plays in their lives. AA/AS GE, CSU, CSU GE, IGETC, UC

Semester	Section	Units	Enrollment	Meeting Days	Start-End Time	Online FTES	In Person FTES
Fall 2024	4095	3	35	Т	10-11:25	3.5	0
Spring 2025	4843	3	25	Т	10-11:25	2.5	0

Total Sections:	2
Total Enrollment:	60
Total Online FTES:	6
Total In-Person FTES:	0

8. Course: ETHN 114

Title: Introduction to Race & Ethnicity

Scope/Nature: An introduction to the sociological analysis of ethnicity, race, and immigration in the United States. Topics include the history of racialized and minoritized groups in the United States, patterns of interaction between racial and ethnic groups, colonialism, immigration, identity formation, prejudice, discrimination, ethnocentrism, racism, institutional racism, social movements for civil rights, liberation, and decolonization, and the intersection of race and ethnicity with other forms of difference. Also listed as SOC 114. Not open to students with credit in SOC 114. (AA/AS GE, CSU, CSU GE, IGETC, UC)

Semester	Section	Units	Enrollment	Meeting Days	Start-End Time	Online FTES	In Person FTES
Spring 2025	4844	3	20	М	8:30 -11:35	0	2

Total Sections:	1
Total Enrollment:	20
Total Online FTES:	0
Total In-Person FTES:	2

9. Course: HED 120

Title: Personal Health and Lifestyle

Scope/Nature: This course focuses on the exploration of major health issues and behaviors in the various dimensions of health. Emphasis is placed on individual responsibility for personal health and the promotion of informed, positive health behaviors. Topics include nutrition, exercise, weight control, mental health, stress management, violence, substance abuse, reproductive health, disease prevention, aging, healthcare, and environmental hazards and safety. AA/AS GE, CSU, CSU GE, UC, UC credit limit

Semester	Section	Units	Enrollment	Meeting Days	Start-End Time	Online FTES	In Person FTES
Fall 2024	4099	3	20	Online	Online	2	0
Spring 2025	4852	3	30	Online	Online	3	0

Total Sections:	2
Total Enrollment:	50
Total Online FTES:	5
Total In-Person FTES:	0

10. Course: HED 201

Title: Introduction to Public Health

Scope/Nature: This course provides an introduction to the discipline of Public Health. Students will gain an understanding of the basic concepts and terminologies of public health, and the history and accomplishments of public health officials and agencies. An overview of the functions of various public health professions and institutions and an indepth examination of the core public health disciplines is covered. Topics of the discipline include the epidemiology of infectious and chronic disease; prevention and control of diseases in the community including the analysis of the social determinants of health and strategies for eliminating disease, illness, and health disparities among various populations; community organizing and health promotion programming; environmental health and safety; global health; and healthcare policy and management. A/AS GE, CSU, CSU GE, UC

Semester	Section	Units	Enrollment	Meeting Days	Start-End Time	Online FTES	In Person FTES
Fall 2024	9842	3	20	W	8:30-11:35	0	2
Spring 2025	4853	3	20	W	8:30-11:35	0	2

Total Sections:	2
Total Enrollment:	40
Total Online FTES:	0
Total In-Person FTES:	4

11. Course: HED 202

Title: Health Professions and Organizations **Scope/Nature**: A review of health organizations and agencies that operate locally, regionally, nationally and internationally. Information regarding potential careers in medicine, allied health, and public health is included. CSU

Semester	Section	Units	Enrollment	Meeting Days	Start-End Time	Online FTES	In Person FTES
Fall 2024	9757	3	20	F	8:30-11:35	0	2

Total Sections:	1
Total Enrollment:	20
Total Online FTES:	0
Total In-Person FTES:	2

12. Course: HED 203

Title: Substance Abuse and Public Health

Scope/Nature: This course provides an overview of the epidemiology and toxicology of substance abuse and its relevance to personal and public health. Students will be introduced to the concept of substance abuse and dependence, the definition of licit and illicit drugs, and the pharmacologic, neurologic, and physiologic effects of selected substances on the human brain. Political, social, and economic factors involved in the supply and demand of drugs will be discussed. Epidemiologic data on the prevalence, incidence, and trends of smoking, alcohol, prescription, and other drug dependencies in the U.S. will be covered, as well as risk factors associated with the use and abuse of these substances. Current options for recovery and a survey of local resources will be reviewed. AA/AS GE, CSU, CSU GE, UC

Semester	Section	Units	Enrollment	Meeting Days	Start-End Time	Online FTES	In Person FTES
Spring 2025	4854	3	30	F	8:30-11:35	0	3

Total Sections:	1
Total Enrollment:	30
Total Online FTES:	0
Total In-Person FTES:	3

13. Course: HED 204

Title: Health and Social Justice

Scope/Nature: This course provides an introduction to the health inequities in the United States that stem from unequal living conditions. Students will explore how education, socioeconomic status, race, and gender shape health epidemics and policy development. The basic knowledge and skills necessary for advocating for health and social justice will be theoretically demonstrated. AA/AS GE, CSU, CSU GE, IGETC, UC

Semester	Section	Units	Enrollment	Meeting Days	Start-End Time	Online FTES	In Person FTES
Fall 2024	1117	3	25	М	8:30-11:25	2.5	0
Spring 2025	4855	3	30	М	8:30-11:35	0	3

Total Sections:	2
Total Enrollment:	55
Total Online FTES:	2.5
Total In-Person FTES:	3.0

14. Course: HED 251

Title: Healthy Lifestyle Theory & App

Scope/Nature: A combination of physical activity and lecture providing regular exercise to develop physical fitness and information about basic, sound nutrition as it pertains to weight control. Guidelines that promote lifetime exercise and a healthy lifestyle will be emphasized. (AA/AS GE, CSU, CSU GE)

Semester	Section	Units	Enrollment	Meeting Days	Start-End Time	Online FTES	In Person FTES
Fall 2024	2584	3	20	W	8:30-11:35	0	2
Spring 2025	4856	3	20	W	8:30-11:35	0	2

Total Sections:	2
Total Enrollment:	40
Total Online FTES:	0
Total In-Person FTES:	4

15. Course: HIST 109

Title: Modern American History

Scope/Nature: A historical survey of the political, social, economic and cultural development of the United States from 1865 to the present. Explores modern American institutions, ideals, ideologies, and laws, including explorations of the U.S. and California constitutions and interactions between federal, state, and local governments. AA/AS GE, CSU, CSU GE, IGETC, UC credit limit

Semester	Section	Units	Enrollment	Meeting Days	Start-End Time	Online FTES	In Person FTES
Fall 2024	4120	3	20	T, W, TH	8:30-9:55	0	2
Spring 2025	4848	3	20	T, W, TH	8:30-9:55	0	2

2
40
0
4

16. Course: MATH 160

Title: Elementary Statistics

Scope/Nature: The use of probability techniques, hypothesis testing, and predictive techniques to facilitate decision-making. Topics include descriptive statistics; probability and sampling distributions; statistical inference; correlation and linear regression; analysis of variance, chi-square, and t-tests; and application of technology for statistical analysis including the interpretation of the relevance of the statistical findings. Applications using data from disciplines including business, social sciences, psychology, life science, health science, and education. AA/AS GE, CSU, CSU GE, IGETC, UC credit limit

Semester	Section	Units	Enrollment	Meeting Days	Start-End Time	Online FTES	In Person FTES
Fall 2024	6166	4	30	T-W-TH	8:30-9:45	0	4
Spring 2025	4838	4	25	T-W-TH	8:30-9:50	0	3.33

Total Sections:	2
Total Enrollment:	55
Total Online FTES:	0
Total In-Person FTES:	7.33

17. Course: MATH 170

Title: Analytic Trigonometry

Scope/Nature: Theoretical approach to the study of trigonometric functions with emphasis on circular functions, trigonometric identities, trigonometric equations, graphical methods, vectors and applications, complex numbers, and solving triangles with applications. Successful completion of MATH 170 and 175 is equivalent to the successful completion of MATH 176. A maximum of 7 units can be earned for successfully completing any combination of MATH 170, 175, 176. AA/AS GE, CSU, CSU GE

Semester	Section	Units	Enrollment	Meeting Days	Start-End Time	Online FTES	In Person FTES
Fall 2024	9764	3	20	М	8:30-11:45	0	2

Total Sections:1Total Enrollment:20

Total Online FTES:	0
Total In-Person FTES:	2

18. Course: MATH 175

Title: College Algebra

Scope/Nature: College-level course in algebra for majors in science, technology, engineering, and mathematics: polynomial, rational, radical, exponential, absolute value, and logarithmic functions; systems of equations; theory of polynomial equations; and analytic geometry. Successful completion of MATH 170 and 175 is equivalent to the successful completion of MATH 176. A maximum of 7 units can be earned for successfully completing any combination of MATH 170, 175, 176. AA/AS GE, CSU, CSU GE, IGETC, UC credit limit

Semester	Section	Units	Enrollment	Meeting Days	Start-End Time	Online FTES	In Person FTES
Spring 2025	4839	4	25	T, W, TH	10:00-11:25	0	3.33

Total Sections:	1
Total Enrollment:	25
Total Online FTES:	0
Total In-Person FTES:	3.33

19. Course: MATH 180

Title: Analytic Geometry and Calculus I

Scope/Nature: Graphic, numeric, and analytic approaches to the study of analytic geometry, limits and continuity of functions, and introductory differential and integral calculus. Applications involving analysis of algebraic, exponential, logarithmic, trigonometric, and hyperbolic functions from a variety of disciplines including science, business, and engineering. First of three courses designed to provide math, science, and engineering students with a solid introduction to the theory and techniques of analysis. AA/AS GE, CSU, CSU GE, IGETC, UC credit limit

Semester	Section	Units	Enrollment	Meeting Days	Start-End Time	Online FTES	In Person FTES
Spring 2025	4841	5	20	T, W, TH	12:15 - 3:10	0	3.33
	Total Sections:		1				
	Total Enrollment:		20				
	Total Online FTES:		0				
	Total In-Pers	on FTES:	3.33				

20. Course: MUS 123

Title: History of Hip-Hop Culture

Scope/Nature: This is a survey course that will examine the origins and rise of Hip-Hop as an artistic form and global cultural phenomenon. It is designed for students who wish to examine and explore Hip-Hop culture while developing background knowledge of Hip-Hop history from the early 1970s South Bronx to its national and international role today. The connections between rap music and the other elements of Hip-Hop culture will be explored and students will be challenged to think critically about rap music and its place in society. Controversial subjects such as censorship, racism, sexism, and racial politics in America will be discussed as they relate to the subject matter. AA/AS GE, CSU, CSU GE

Semester	Section	Units	Enrollment	Meeting Days	Start-End Time	Online FTES	In Person FTES
Spring 2025	4845	3	20	Т	8:30 -11:35	0	2

Total Sections:	1
Total Enrollment:	20
Total Online FTES:	0
Total In-Person FTES:	2

21. Course: NUTR 155

Title: Introduction to Nutrition

Scope/Nature: Introduction to the basic principles of nutrition and its relationship to good health. Evaluation of current nutritional information (and misinformation) with an emphasis on critical thinking to determine optimal dietary choices. Study of the major dietary goals and guidelines. Examination of weight maintenance techniques, eating disorders, food labeling, food safety, and special needs at various stages in the life cycle. Not open to students with credit in HED 155. AA/AS GE, CSU, CSU GE, UC

Semester	Section	Units	Enrollment	Meeting Days	Start-End Time	Online FTES	In Person FTES
Fall 2024	4430	3	30	Online	Online	3	0
Spring 2025	4857	3	25	Online	Online	2	0
Spring 2025	4858	3	40	Online	Online	4	0
Summer 2025	TBD	3	40	Online	Online	4	0

Total Sections:	4
Total Enrollment:	135
Total Online FTES:	13.5
Total In-Person FTES:	0

22. Course: POSC 120

Title: Politics and Political Analysis

Scope/Nature: The primary aim of this course is to assist the student/citizen in the development of a set of skills that can be helpful in analyzing political situations in the world today. In order to accomplish this objective, students will be introduced to the basic approaches, perspectives, techniques, and models of the political scientist. Accordingly, this course covers some universal aspects of political stability and change, ideologies, conflicts, institutions, political economy, and issues. AA/AS GE, CSU, CSU GE, IGETC, UC

	Semester	Section	Units	Enrollment	Meeting Days	Start-End Time	Online FTES	In Person FTES
ſ	Fall 2024	7978	3	40	F	8:30 -11:35	0	4

Total Sections:	1
Total Enrollment:	40
Total Online FTES:	0
Total In-Person FTES:	4

23. Course: POSC 121

Title: Introduction to U.S. Government and Politics

Scope/Nature: Analysis of the evolution of the structures and functions of the U.S. and California's political systems from the time of the nation's founding to the current day in what is now the United States. Emphasis is on the continuity and uniqueness of the American political experience and how that experience has derived from other political cultures. This will be examined in the context of the larger cultural, economic, and sociological forces shaping the U.S. political system. Attention will be given to significant events affecting the evolution of the U.S. political system since its founding. The development and evolution of the U.S. Constitution and the policy-making role of traditional political institutions such as the presidency, the Congress, and the judiciary will be explored. The impact of other political forces such as mass movements, the media, the bureaucracy, interest groups, and ethnic and social groups will be examined. Topics will be illustrated through reference to actual political events occurring as the course progresses. AA/AS GE, CSU, CSU GE, IGETC, UC

Semester	Section	Units	Enrollment	Meeting Days	Start-End Time	Online FTES	In Person FTES
Spring 2025	4846	3	20	F	8:30 -11:35	0	2
Summer 2025	TBD	3	30	Online	Online	3	0

Total Sections:	2
Total Enrollment:	50
Total Online FTES:	3
Total In-Person FTES:	2

24. Course: PSY 120

Title: Introductory Psychology

Scope/Nature: Introduction to the facts and theories that seek to explain and understand human thought and behavior including such topics as personality, psychotherapy, learning, memory, interpersonal relationships, adjustment, and biological influences. AA/AS GE, CSU, CSU GE, IGETC, UC

Semester	Section	Units	Enrollment	Meeting Days	Start-End Time	Online FTES	In Person FTES
Fall 2024	7977	3	40	М	8:30-11:25	4	0
Spring 2025	4847	3	30	М	8:30 -11:30	0	3

Total Sections:	2
Total Enrollment:	70
Total Online FTES:	4
Total In-Person FTES:	3

25. Course: SOC 120

Title: Introductory Sociology

Scope/Nature: Introductory study of the major concepts, theoretical approaches, and methods of sociology. Topics include social structure, culture, social control, deviance, social stratification, globalization, ethnic and race relations, gender, sexuality, social institutions, social interaction, socialization, and social change. Course objectives include the ability to apply sociological ideas to everyday life. AA/AS GE, CSU, CSU GE, IGETC, UC

Semester	Section	Units	Enrollment	Meeting Days	Start-End Time	Online FTES	In Person FTES
Fall 2024	4121	3	20	F	8:30 -11:35	0	2
	Total Section	ns:	1				
	Total Enrollment:		20				
	Total Online FTES:		0				
Total In-Person FTES:		son FTES:	2				

26. Course: SW 120

Title: Introduction to Social Work

Scope/Nature: 3-hour lecture Students will use a social problems approach to describe how poverty, child abuse, substance abuse, health and mental health issues, sexism, racism, other forms of discrimination, crime, and other social issues affect people. Provides a framework for analyzing policy issues and for making informed civic decisions on social issues. Students are asked to volunteer at a social service/community service agency to observe and report on how social workers attempt to assess and address social problems. CSU

Semester	Section	Units	Enrollment	Meeting Days	Start-End Time	Online FTES	In Person FTES
Fall 2024	4397	3	20	М	8:30 -11:25	0	2
Spring 2025	4849	3	20	М	8:30 -11:35	0	2

Total Sections:	2
Total Enrollment:	40
Total Online FTES:	0
Total In-Person FTES:	4

Health Sciences High and Middle College Charter High School

Total 2024-2025 CCAP Projections		
Courses:	26	
Sections:	42	
Students:	1,140	
Online FTES:	53	
In-Person FTES:	64.99	

Coversheet

LCAP - Overview and Public Presentation of LCAP for HSHMC

 Section:
 II. Information Items

 Item:
 D. LCAP - Overview and Public Presentation of LCAP for HSHMC

 Purpose:
 Submitted by:

 Related Material:
 2025_Local_Control_and_Accountability_Plan_Health_Sciences_High_School_20250415.pdf

LCFF Budget Overview for Parents

Local Educational Agency (LEA) Name: Health Sciences High and Middle College

CDS Code: 37683380114462

School Year: 2025-26

LEA contact information:

Oscar Corrigan

Director

ocorrigan@hshmc.org

619-528-9070

School districts receive funding from different sources: state funds under the Local Control Funding Formula (LCFF), other state funds, local funds, and federal funds. LCFF funds include a base level of funding for all LEAs and extra funding - called "supplemental and concentration" grants - to LEAs based on the enrollment of high needs students (foster youth, English learners, and low-income students).

Budget Overview for the 2025-26 School Year

Projected Revenue by Fund Source	
Total LCFF funds \$0 0 %	

This chart shows the total general purpose revenue Health Sciences High and Middle College expects to receive in the coming year from all sources.

Health Sciences High and Middle College - HSHMC Board Meeting - Agenda - Tuesday April 22, 2025 at 9:30 AM The text description for the above chart is as follows: The total revenue projected for Health Sciences High and Middle College is \$0, of which \$ is Local Control Funding Formula (LCFF), \$ is other state funds, \$ is local funds, and \$ is federal funds. Of the \$ in LCFF Funds, \$ is generated based on the enrollment of high needs students (foster youth, English learner, and low-income students).

LCFF Budget Overview for Parents

The charts in the Budget Overview for Parents are automatically generated based on your updates in the input form of the standalone template in DTS. There is no need to insert images.

Please contact DTS if you would like support with overlapping labels. Thank you!

The LCFF gives school districts more flexibility in deciding how to use state funds. In exchange, school districts must work with parents, educators, students, and the community to develop a Local Control and Accountability Plan (LCAP) that shows how they will use these funds to serve students.

	Budgeted Expenditures in the LCAP
\$1	
\$1	
\$1	
\$1	
\$0	
\$0	
\$0	

This chart provides a quick summary of how much Health Sciences High and Middle College plans to spend for 2025-26. It shows how much of the total is tied to planned actions and services in the LCAP.

The text description of the above chart is as follows: Health Sciences High and Middle College plans to spend \$ for the 2025-26 school year. Of that amount, \$ is tied to actions/services in the LCAP and \$0 is not included in the LCAP. The budgeted expenditures that are not included in the LCAP will be used for the following:

Increased or Improved Services for High Needs Students in the LCAP for the 2025-26 School Year

In 2025-26, Health Sciences High and Middle College is projecting it will receive \$ based on the enrollment of foster youth, English learner, and low-income students. Health Sciences High and Middle College must describe how it intends to increase or improve services for high needs students in the LCAP. Health Sciences High and Middle College plans to spend \$ towards meeting this requirement, as described in the LCAP.

Update on Increased or Improved Services for High Needs Students in 2024-25



This chart compares what Health Sciences High and Middle College budgeted last year in the LCAP for actions and services that contribute to increasing or improving services for high needs students with what Health Sciences High and Middle College estimates it has spent on actions and services that contribute to increasing or improving services for high needs students in the current year.

The text description of the above chart is as follows: In 2024-25, Health Sciences High and Middle College's LCAP budgeted \$ for planned actions to increase or improve services for high needs students. Health Sciences High and Middle College actually spent \$ for actions to increase or improve services for high needs students in 2024-25.

The difference between the budgeted and actual expenditures of \$0 had the following impact on Health Sciences High and Middle College's ability to increase or improve services for high needs students:

Local Control and Accountability Plan

The instructions for completing the Local Control and Accountability Plan (LCAP) follow the template.

Local Educational Agency (LEA) Name	Contact Name and Title	Email and Phone
Health Sciences High and Middle College	Oscar Corrigan	ocorrigan@hshmc.org
	Director	619-528-9070

Plan Summary [2025-26]

General Information

A description of the LEA, its schools, and its students in grades transitional kindergarten–12, as applicable to the LEA. LEAs may also provide information about their strategic plan, vision, etc.

Health Sciences High and Middle College (HSHMC) is a charter school serving students in grades 9-12. Students who attend HSHMC in San Diego experience high school in a very different way than their peers in other schools. The learning environment and educational programs are tightly focused and methodically designed to ensure students will graduate prepared to be successful in college or career. The curriculum is rigorous, relevant, and contextually grounded in real world experiences. Students are provided with a rigorous A-G curriculum including honors coursework as well as college classes, internship experiences, and athletic and extracurricular opportunities.

Our Mission Statement is:

We created HSHMC as a place where young people could learn about health and health care, while receiving a world-class education in a safe and supportive environment. HSHMC is a home away from home, an open door, and a place of rigor and academia – where students earn a diploma that matters. We do what it takes, we do no harm, we set no limits on our potential to learn and grow. Here, we are all family– and we love what we do!

We recognized the need to build on their established educational partnerships to create a strong and aligned system with a focus on supporting the whole child. Using the Community Schools Partnership Grant as a guide, the school is committed to growing as a community school that engages and empowers students, families, staff and community partners in collaboration focused on improving academic and social/emotional supports for all students.

HSHMC is located in inarguably San Diego's most densely populated, culturally rich and economically challenged urban neighborhood. City Heights communities, based on annual San Diego Police Department crime statistics and the San Diego County Office Department of Public health data, continue to annually show the highest levels in the city for youth crime and victimization. These data and circumstances underscore the need to make HSHMC a place that promotes health and safety and to organize and deliver a set of interventions that engage family and community to increase trauma-sensitive mental health services related to anger management, sexual and reproductive health, depression, suicide and self-injurious thoughts and behaviors. We couple this with aspirations-focused career planning through school practices that are based on relationship building and restoration rather than punishment and removal. And these practices are well aligned with our responsibility to support advanced instructional practices offered in our classrooms during the school days as well as supplemental interventions in student centers and in an expanded school day and school year.

It is a tribute to the students, community and staff of HSHMC that they have been so successful in an urban school with 75.9% of the students are socioeconomically disadvantaged, 22.7% are English Learners and 19.2% are Students with Disabilities. The student population of 528 students is 72.9% Hispanic and 14.4% African American as shown in current (2024) California Dashboard data. The diversity of the students is celebrated and honored as part of a welcoming and inclusive environment that honors student voice and family perspectives. The LCAP is designed to build on student strengths, provide additional support in areas of challenge, and develop curriculum and programs to serve the academic and social/emotional needs of each student.

The school is also moving forward with physical improvements to our campus. We are continuing to effectively use our new sports and events area, Kippy's Center for student and family events in addition to promoting health and wellness through access to a gym. Currently we are completing our capital improvement project at our facilities. We will have more classroom space including a new science laboratory and more areas for smaller group meetings and targeted interventions. Additionally, we are creating CTE program spaces to have designated rooms where students can build upon the skills they are learning in internships and college coursework.

Reflections: Annual Performance

A reflection on annual performance based on a review of the California School Dashboard (Dashboard) and local data.

HSHMC's mission statement explicitly states that students will earn a diploma that matters. As such, in addition to engaging in rigorous, well balanced, and standards-based curriculum, our students have access to different pathways to prepare them to be college and/or career ready. As a middle college, our pathways include both internship experiences and an array of college courses.

Health Sciences High is proud of the continued success of its College and Career preparation program. Dashboard data shows that the College/Career metric continues to rate HSHMC "Very High" for All Students and for the 3 significant student groups, with 90% of all

students rated as Prepared. The Graduation rate is 98.5%, blue on the Dashboard, for all students and blue for 3 of the 3 student groups of English Learners, Hispanic, and Socioeconomically Disadvantaged. In the previous year our Suspension rate was very low, blue on the Dashboard at 0.02%. Due to a slight 1.6% increase in suspensions we are orange on the 2024 Dashboard.

Regarding other metrics on the Dashboard, we made growth for all three indicators and student groups that were red in 2023. The three indicators were English Learner Progress (ELP), ELA, and mathematics in 2023. Our 2024 Dashboard now reflects green for ELP, representing an increase in students making progress towards English language proficiency based on implementation of increased Multilingual Learner (MLL) supports.

We also made gains in ELA and mathematics, with yellow and orange on the 2024 Dashboard respectively.

- English Language Arts (ELA) for all students, Hispanic, and Socioeconomically Disadvantaged student groups were yellow while English Learners were in orange.
- Mathematics for all students, English Learner, Hispanic and Socioeconomically Disadvantaged student groups were all in orange.

These areas have been, and will continue to be, the focus of discussion and research among staff, students, and parents/community at the school, and the key focus of the LCAP development process. Additionally, consistent monitoring of i-Ready data during professional learning time provided valuable insight on how students are progressing within the school year, giving staff real-time feedback on areas in ELA and mathematics where either acceleration or reteaching is needed.

Our professional learning, instructional coaching, and Professional Learning Communities (PLCs) provided ongoing opportunities to impact student outcomes. As an example, teachers engaged in quarterly Collective Efficacy Cycles, where they worked with colleagues to identify a common challenge that addressed student learning needs. Common challenges from the 2024-2025 school year included: "Our students need more intentional opportunities to learn and utilize academic vocabulary", "We want to strengthen our integrated ELD efforts through oral language development to better support our Multilingual Learners", and "We want to leverage close reading to help students better understand complex texts". These professional learning opportunities provided staff time to collaborate and make informed decisions that positively impacted student learning.

Reflections: Technical Assistance

As applicable, a summary of the work underway as part of technical assistance.

NA

Comprehensive Support and Improvement

An LEA with a school or schools eligible for comprehensive support and improvement must respond to the following prompts.

Schools Identified

A list of the schools in the LEA that are eligible for comprehensive support and improvement.

Health Sciences High and Middle College (HSHMC)

Support for Identified Schools

A description of how the LEA has or will support its eligible schools in developing comprehensive support and improvement plans.

Health Sciences High and Middle College (HSHMC) will continue to augment the annual LCAP planning process to gather additional targeted information regarding how to improve student outcomes on Dashboard measurements. Additionally, as part of the Needs Assessment process, LCAP Planning meetings have been held and will continue with all educational partners, including staff, students, parents, parents of EL students, and community partners. The meetings focus on identifying areas of concern and methods for improving student outcomes and success. Results will inform the selection and alignment of CSI strategies to goals and actions included in the LCAP. There are no longer areas red indicators on the 2024 California Dashboard. The staff has continued to refine and develop targeted interventions to provide additional support, using a variety of instructional strategies for students scoring below grade level on their most recent i-Ready diagnostic.

This includes the use of tailored lessons created by i-Ready for each student. In addition, content area teachers have been more strategic about revisiting and reteaching transferrable ELA and math skills as they connect to the topics being covered in their content classes. The differentiated needs of English Learners (ELs) are continuing to being addressed through intentional professional development focused on analyzing ELPAC scores and improving the skills of ELs in reading, writing, listening, and speaking through integrated and designated ELD supports. A review of evidence-based interventions, such as SDAIE, reinforce strategies that support English Learners as well as other students in content area classes. The work around improving the EL program is being undertaken in partnership with the San Diego County Office of Education. A key component of upcoming professional development will be discussions with staff about what the i-Ready and Achieve 3000 scores mean, and how they relate to course competency and test scores. The goal is the creation of a cohesive system that integrates benchmark data analysis with lesson planning, focuses on using evidence-based interventions and results in higher levels of student understanding and mastery of identified skills and objectives.

The goal is to continue to refine our system using benchmark data and evidence-based practices integrated into classrooms and targeted interventions. Planning instruction in a manner that is sensitive to the diverse strengths and needs of students in the classroom will improve mastery of the content being taught. This work will be influenced by, and coordinated with, other new initiatives being undertaken at the school, with a focus on Community School development and a structured Multi-Tiered System of Support (MTSS) for our students.

As a single school charter there are no resource inequities to address.

Health Sciences High and Middle College - HSHMC Board Meeting - Agenda - Tuesday April 22, 2025 at 9:30 AM

Monitoring and Evaluating Effectiveness

A description of how the LEA will monitor and evaluate the plan to support student and school improvement.

The use of the metrics and data on the California Dashboard will continue, and will be the final determination of the effectiveness of the improvement plan. However, instead of waiting for the once-a-year Dashboard results, HSHMC is continuing to refine its interim monitoring process to identify skills that students need more support to master and to more quickly address learning gaps. i-Ready is one part of that monitoring for ELA and Math, and Achieve3000 is also a part of the system. As the school completes additional data analysis and needs assessments to respond to the 2023 CSI identification, these monitoring systems, and possibly others, will be used to respond more quickly, in an organized and timely manner, to improve the achievement of each and every student.

Students at-risk of not meeting grade level standards are assigned to an intervention course, based on their skill level, where the skills are taught in different ways and using different inputs. These students will be monitored closely by the intervention teachers to create a more cohesive system that integrates interim assessment results with plans for skill development. The school leadership team is monitoring the benchmark assessment results to determine the efficacy of the system and identify changes needed to increase success.

All educational partners will be engaged in the planning, support, monitoring and evaluation processes. Community CTE partners will provide relevant, job-related real-life connections to the teaching of the content and skills in the classroom. Parents, students, and other staff will be engaged in a variety of feedback loops which will allow refinement and improvements to the CSI plan strategies to strive toward high levels of success.

Engaging Educational Partners

A summary of the process used to engage educational partners in the development of the LCAP.

School districts and county offices of education must, at a minimum, consult with teachers, principals, administrators, other school personnel, local bargaining units, parents, and students in the development of the LCAP.

Charter schools must, at a minimum, consult with teachers, principals, administrators, other school personnel, parents, and students in the development of the LCAP.

An LEA receiving Equity Multiplier funds must also consult with educational partners at schools generating Equity Multiplier funds in the development of the LCAP, specifically, in the development of the required focus goal for each applicable school.

Educational Partner(s)	Process for Engagement
General Approach	HSHMC has built a collaborative and open communication system among all educational partners that begins in the fall and continues through the LCAP update and revision cycle. The school has found a variety of ways to collaborate and engage with all educational partners to ensure they are always part of the conversation and their ideas and concerns matter including both in-person and through digital communication. Working together we can continually grow and improve, enhancing the educational experiences for all students. Our continued commitment as a community school and with the support of the CCSPP community, our Community School Coordinator will build the capacity to plan and implement expanded community engagement and involvement among all educational partners. As a small campus, all staff are involved in the regular staff meetings throughout the week.
Teachers	Teacher/Staff Meetings occur each week on Monday mornings. Discussions range from attendance data to best teaching practices. Additionally, we look at i-Ready data to identify areas of growth and success. These meetings are regularly linked to LCAP goals and actions to impact revisions of the LCAP. Dashboard data were discussed during schoolwide professional learning and in grade level PLCs. Teachers and staff collaborate weekly in small groups, Collective Efficacy Cycles, three times a week to engage in iterative cycles to ensure improvements to student learning. Additionally,
-	h and Middle College - HSHMC Board Meeting - Agenda - Tuesday April 22, 2025 at 9:30 AM
------------------------	--
Educational Partner(s)	Process for Engagement
	teachers meet with grade level and content area groups to improve vertical and horizontal alignment.
Principals	Participate in Teacher/Staff meetings (see above). Principal and other site administrators meet regularly to discuss actions connected to LCAP goals.
Administrators	Participate in Teacher/Staff meetings (see above) Principal and other site administrators meet regularly to discuss actions connected to LCAP goals.
Other School Personnel	Participate in Teacher/Staff meetings (see above)
Parents	LCAP parent surveys were available in Spanish and English at school wide events (9/18/24, 11/21/24, 11/22/24, and 3/12/25). LCAP feedback was elicited through posters on 3/12/25 during the Open House event. DELAC meetings allowed for parent input (9/18/24, 11/12/24, and 2/11/25) with specific LCAP input elicited during the February meeting. LCAP surveys were mailed home with quarter grades and school bulletins throughout the year.
Students	Students completed the California Healthy Kids Survey in October 2024 and May 2025. Results are shared. Also, senior students led events where they facilitated class circles in grades 9-11 to gather more evidence about how students feel at school. Staff also share information with the leadership team about input they receive via informal discussions with students about HSHMC incidents/likes/concerns.
Board and Community	CTE partners provide regular feedback and ideas to staff at HSHMC. During the Board Public Hearing the draft LCAP was shared with the Board and community for feedback (April 2025). The LCAP Survey is available on the Website. The Board Meeting for Approval of LCAP was in May 2025.
SELPA	Desert Mountain SELPA staff talk regularly (weekly) with the HSHMC Education Specialist that works with the school's Special Education

Process for Engagement
Program. The SELPA is aware of the HSHMC LCAP process and proposals, and provides feedback as needed.

A description of how the adopted LCAP was influenced by the feedback provided by educational partners.

For all three LCAP goals, the actions are being implemented with an increased focus on Community School development and a structured Multi-Tiered System of Support (MTSS) for our students. This was based on feedback, discussions and reflections among administrators, staff, parents and students that was a need for organized, and well communicated processes and procedures to support all students on the path to educational success.

Parent/Community:

- Parents, including non English speakers, continue to want more resources for themselves and their students about the preparation for college and financial aid for college. They also suggested possible campus visits. This is addressed in Goal 3, Action 3. Parents believe these actions will help prepare and motivate students to be successful in college and career endeavors.
- Parents also thought additional Professional Development for staff to build skills and knowledge, and create a positive atmosphere were very important. Professional Development is addressed in Goal 2, Action 2.

Students:

- Results from the student surveys and discussions indicate that students don't always see the connection between the learning that occurs in school and what is happening in their everyday life. Teachers will discuss in content meetings how to better demonstrate the relevance of school learning. (Goal 2, Action 2).
- Students also indicate that they don't understand the purpose of interim and summative tests. HSHMC began a process this year of helping students and teachers understand how the results from iReady and other assessments relate to determining areas the students still need to focus on to improve. (Goal 1, Action 4)

Staff:

- In reviewing the FIA and the Staff Survey there is a feeling that there needs to be more communication among the school community around mental health and social emotional supports, including more training for teachers in SEL strategies. This is included in Goal 2, Action 2.
- Feedback on the LCAP Goals and Actions indicates that staff wants more information on strategies to support EL students, and especially more push in support. This is addressed in Goal 2, Action 7.
- Similarly, staff are requesting more support around motivating and meeting the needs of at-risk students. This is addressed in Goal 2, Action 6.

Goal

UUUI					
Goal #	Type of Goal				
1All students will benefit from the maintenance of a strong base program that is foundational to building student academic and soial/emotional success at HSHMC.Maintenance of Program Goal					
State Prio	rities addressed by this goal.				
Priority 1: Basic (Conditions of Learning) Priority 2: State Standards (Conditions of Learning) Priority 7: Course Access (Conditions of Learning)					

Priority 8: Other Pupil Outcomes (Pupil Outcomes)

An explanation of why the LEA has developed this goal.

HSHMC has consistently met all Annual Measurable Outcomes associated with this goal, and as an established and successful charter has a well-defined foundation from which to build. Therefore, the leadership team (administrators and teachers), with agreement from other Educational Partners have determined this is a Maintenance of Progress Goal.

Measuring and Reporting Results

Metric #	Metric	Baseline	Year 1 Outcome	Year 2 Outcome	Target for Year 3 Outcome	Current Difference from Baseline
1.1	Percent of teachers who are appropriately assigned and fully credentialed, including teachers of English Learners, as measured by Dashboard Local Indicator - Basics.	81.1 % of teachers (2021-2022 Data) 100% Teachers of English Learners	All teachers -100% Teacher of English Learners - 100%		All teachers - 100% Teacher of English Learners - 100%	All teachers - 18.9% Teacher of English Learners - 0%
1.2	Access to Standards aligned instructional materials, as measured by tools in Local Indicator -Basics.	100% of students have sufficient access	100% of students have sufficient access		100%	0%

	Не	alth Sciences High and Middle College	e - HSHMC Board Meeting - Age	enda - Tuesday April 22, 2025	at 9:30 AM	1
Metric #	Metric	Baseline	Year 1 Outcome	Year 2 Outcome	Target for Year 3 Outcome	Current Difference from Baseline
1.3	School facilities are in good repair, as measured by Local Indicator 1 - Basics.	100% of the facilities are safe, clean and functional, and maintained in good repair.	100% of the facilities are safe, clean and functional, and maintained in good repair.		100%	0%
1.4	Progress in implementing California state academic standards,as measured by sections 3 and 4 of the Reflection Tool in the Local Indicator for Implementation of Academic Standards This includes programs to enable English Learner students to access ELD standards	ELA - 5 (Full Implementation and Sustainability) ELD - 5 Math - 5 Science - 5 History- Social Science - 5 CTE - 5 Health - 5 Physical Education - 5 VAPA - 5 World Languages - 5	ELA - 5 (Full Implementation and Sustainability) ELD - 5 Math - 5 Science - 5 History- Social Science - 5 CTE - 5 Health - 5 Physical Education - 5 VAPA - 5 World Languages - 5		ELA - 5 (Full Implementation and Sustainability) ELD - 5 Math - 5 Science - 5 History- Social Science - 5 CTE - 5 Health - 5 Physical Education - 5 VAPA - 5 World Languages - 5	0%
1.5	Percent of students who have access to a Broad Course of Study, as measured by the narrative in the Local Indicator for this metric.	100% of all students have access, including unduplicated pupils and individuals with exceptional needs	100% of all students have access, including unduplicated pupils and individuals with exceptional needs		100%	0%
1.6	Student Voice Survey Results	Student Voice Survey Question # 1. School is a welcoming and friendly place - 84.2% agree 10. Teachers	(Year 1) Using CHKS, we now have a new baseline:		#1 - 90% #10 - 88% New Target for CHKS will be 76% for school connectedness	N/A

Metric #	Metric	Baseline	Year 1 Outcome	Year 2 Outcome	Target for Year 3 Outcome	Current Difference from Baseline
		respect students - 80.2% agree New Baseline for Year 2 using CHKS	(Year 2-3) Baseline Q# from Fall 2024 Based on Table A6.4, 70% of our students had school connectedness Based on Table A6.5, 68.5% of respondents have caring relationships with adults in school.		and 74% for caring relationships with adults.	

Health Sciences High and Middle College USHMC Roard Masting Agonda, Tuesday April 22, 2025 at 0:20 AM

Goal Analysis [2024-25]

An analysis of how this goal was carried out in the previous year.

A description of overall implementation, including any substantive differences in planned actions and actual implementation of these actions, and any relevant challenges and successes experienced with implementation.

The overall implementation for Metrics 1.1-1.5 were successful in that 100% of our teachers were appropriately assigned and fully credentialed. We ensured teachers implemented the appropriate standards for their grade level and content while utilizing standards-aligned materials. Also, our facilities for 2024-25 were in good repair. Metric 1.6 measured school climate with Baseline data from the Student Voice Survey, which was used in years prior. In 2024-25 we utilized the California Healthy Kids Survey (CHKS) and aligned these questions to similar items from Student Voice. The items from CHKS, now serving as our Baseline data, were related to overall school connectedness and about having healthy relationships with students. Therefore, changing the survey tool resulted in differences in planned action and actual implementation.

Health Sciences High and Middle College - HSHMC Board Meeting - Agenda - Tuesday April 22, 2025 at 9:30 AM An explanation of material differences between Budgeted Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures and/or Planned Percentages of Improved Services and Estimated Actual Percentages of Improved Services.

N/A

A description of the effectiveness or ineffectiveness of the specific actions to date in making progress toward the goal.

The actions were effective in maintaining a strong base program as indicated by the maintenance metric for teacher credentialing (100%), access to materials (100%), and well maintained, safe, and healthy facilities (100%). Our administration of the CHKS was not entirely effective due to a lower than expected response rate.

A description of any changes made to the planned goal, metrics, target outcomes, or actions for the coming year that resulted from reflections on prior practice.

Based on the low participation by certain grade levels on CHKS, we administered the survey with grade level leads to ensure that student responses increased to give our staff a better understanding of how students feel about the school climate to implement future changes for the coming school year. We will continue to refine this system to ensure we have an accurate representation of our student population.

A report of the Total Estimated Actual Expenditures for last year's actions may be found in the Annual Update Table. A report of the Estimated Actual Percentages of Improved Services for last year's actions may be found in the Contributing Actions Annual Update Table. Table.

Action #	Title	Description	Total Funds	Contributing
1.1	Basic Services	HSHMC will continue to hire and retain appropriately assigned and fully credentialed teachers, and provide all students with access to California standards aligned instructional materials, for all courses included in the broad course of study offered. (General Funded (GF) expenses such as classroom teacher salaries; some admin and classified staff salaries, basic standards based textbooks)	\$3,275,000.00	No
1.2	Beyond Credentialing	Research demonstrates that teachers have one of the strongest impacts on student success. HSHMC will support teachers in continuing their growth and education by earning advanced degrees, and/or certifications	\$115,500.00	No

Action #	Title	Description	Total Funds	Contributing
		such as Apple Teacher Certification, National Board Certification, and Induction. (GF, Title II)		
		(GF, Title II)		
1.3	Facilities and Safety	Ensure the budget provides adequately for lease and operational costs, including adequate repair and maintenance costs HSHMC will maintain safe, clean and functional facilities to ensure students and staff are learning in a safe and healthy environment, and are prepared for future needs.	\$31,500.00	No
		(GF)		
1.4	Academic Program	All students will benefit from the rigorous and relevant standards aligned academic base program provided in all classrooms and grade-levels at HSHMC	\$17,850.00	No
		English Learner students will be appropriately placed and benefit from both Designated and Integrated ELD instruction in the classroom, along with primary language support when needed.		
		Professional Development on the state standards and creating a positive educational environment will create a strong foundation on which to build more focused interventions. Additional work to to establish our staff's MTSS competence/expertise will be ongoing.		
		(MTSS Tier 1)		
		(GF; EL teacher, Counselor, basic school supplies,)		

Action #	Title	Description	Total Funds	Contributing
1.5	Social/emotional Safety	Ensure a school culture where all students and staff feel emotionally safe at school. (MTSS, Tier 1) (GF - counselor)	\$21,000.00	No

Goal

Goal #	Description	Type of Goal
2	Improve student achievement through a defined system of evidence based, high-quality instructional and social-emotional programs, supported by appropriate supplemental strategies and interventions for at-risk student groups.	Broad Goal

State Priorities addressed by this goal.

Priority 1: Basic (Conditions of Learning) Priority 4: Pupil Achievement (Pupil Outcomes) Priority 5: Pupil Engagement (Engagement) Priority 6: School Climate (Engagement)

An explanation of why the LEA has developed this goal.

The HSHMC community (staff, parents and students) recognize that every student deserves the opportunity to earn a diploma that matters. Research indicates that this can only happen in an environment where both academic and social/emotional needs of students are met. In reviewing state and local data with the HSHMC community both successes and challenges exist. The charter will continue to monitor all indicators to determine areas of need and create supportive learning environments.

Measuring and Reporting Results

Metric #	Metric	Baseline	Year 1 Outcome	Year 2 Outcome	Target for Year 3 Outcome	Current Difference from Baseline
2.1	CAASPP Results as shown on Dashboard - in math and English Language Arts (ELA), disaggregated by student groups	 ELA - 62.3 points below standard (all students) EL - 140.4 pts below standard Hispanic - 80.9 pts below SED - 77 pts below SWD - 121.9 pts below 	ELA- 9.4 points below standard (all students) • EL - 99.1 pts below • Hispanic - 14.9 pts below • SED - 27.5 pts below		ELA - 17 points below standard • EL - 65 pts below • Hispanic - 27 pts below • SED - 23 pts below • SWD - 68 pts below	ELA - increased 52.9 points (all students) • EL - increased 41.3 pts • Hispanic - increased 66 pts

Health Sciences Hig	h and Middle College - HSHMC E	Board Meeting - Agenda - Tuesda	ay April 22, 2025 at 9:30 AM

Metric #		alth Sciences High and Middle College Baseline	Year 1 Outcome	Year 2 Outcome	Target for Year 3 Outcome	Current Difference from Baseline
		 African Am 36.3 pts below Math - 178.7 points below standard (all students) EL - 254.5 pts below Standard Hispanic - 189.5 pts below SED - 188.1 pts below SWD - 224.3 pts below African Am 156.5 pts below 	 SWD - 76.9 pts below African Am 82.5 pts below Math - 115.5 pts below standard (all students) EL - 193.7 pts below Hispanic - 120.6 pts below SED - 135.5 pts below SWD - 186.6 pts below African Am 163.1 pts below 		 African Am 47 pts below Math - 113 pts below standard EL - 164 pts below Hispanic - 114 pts below SED - 113 pts below SWD - 134 pts below African Am 90 pt below 	 SED - increased 49.5 pts SWD - increased 45 pts African Am decrease d 46.2 pts Math - increased 63.2 (all students) EL - increased 60.8 pts Hispanic - increased 8 SED - increased 9 pts SED - increased 37.7 pts African Am decrease d 6.6 pts
2.2	Other Pupil Outcomes - California Science Test (CAST) results, disaggregated by student groups if available	22.89% met or exceeded standards	14.05% Met or Exceeded		35% met or exceeded standards	Decreased 8.84%

	Health Sciences High and Middle College - HSHMC Board Meeting - Agenda - Tuesday April 22, 2025 at 9:30 AM						
Metric #	Metric	Baseline	Year 1 Outcome	Year 2 Outcome	Target for Year 3 Outcome	Current Difference from Baseline	
2.3	English Learner Progress results on the Dashboard Reclassification rate (%)	31.7% making progress Reclassification rate = 13.3%	2024: 45.7% making progress Reclassification rate = 13.68%		52 % making progress Reclassification rate = 25%	English Learner Progress Increased 14% Reclassification rate increased 0.38%	
2.4	College and Career Indicators- results from Dashboard (disaggregated if statistically appropriate): • % Prepared on Dashboard • A-G Completion rate • CTE Pathway Completion rate • Advanced Placement (not offered)	% Prepared: All students - 86.9% (Very High on Dashboard) • EL - 80% • Hispanic - 85% • SED - 87 % • SWD - 54% • African Am 89% A-G - 89.7% CTE - 26.7%	All students - 90% • EL - 87.5% • Hispanic - 89.8% • SED - 88.2% • SWD - 76.9% • African Am 96% A-G - 92.41% CTE - 34%		 % Prepared: All students - 88% (Very High on Dashboard) EL - 83% Hispanic - 88% SED - 88 % SWD - 60% African Am 89% A-G - 95% for all students CTE Pathway Completion - above 28% for all students 	All students - increased 3.1% • EL - increased 7.5% • Hispanic - increased 4.3% • SED - increased 1.2% • SWD - increased 23.1% • African Am increased 7.1% A-G - increased 2.71%	

	Health Sciences High and Middle College - HSHMC Board Meeting - Agenda - Tuesday April 22, 2025 at 9:30 AM							
Metric #	Metric	Baseline	Year 1 Outcome	Year 2 Outcome	Target for Year 3 Outcome	Current Difference from Baseline		
2.5	Graduation Rate, disaggregated	97.2% graduated EL - 93.3% SED- 96.9% Hispanic - 98.1% SWD - 88.5% African-American - 92.6%	98.5% graduated EL - 97 % SED- 98.2% Hispanic - 98.9% SWD - 96.3% African-American - 96%		98% all students 97% EL 98% SED 95% SWD	% graduated increased 1.2% EL - increased 3.6% SED- increased 1.3% Hispanic - increased 0.8% SWD - increased 7.8% African-American - increased 3.4%		
2.6	High School Dropout Rate	0.69%	1.53%		maintain below 1%	increased 0.84%		
2.7	Suspensions and Expulsions	Suspensions 0.2% Expulsions 0	Suspensions 1.7% from 2024 CA Dashboard Expulsions 0		Suspensions < 1% Expulsions - < 1%	Increased 1.6%		
2.8	Attendance Rate Chronic Absenteeism rates	BASELINE 2023-2024 Attendance Rate - 90% Chronic Absenteeism - 37.4%	YTD Attendance Rate- 92% YTD Chronic Absenteeism - 28%		Attendance rate > 95% Chronic Absenteeism < 10%	Attendance Rate increased - 92% Chronic Absenteeism decreased – 9.4%		

Me	tric #	Metric	Baseline	Year 1 Outcome	Year 2 Outcome	Target for Year 3 Outcome	Current Difference from Baseline
	2.9	Student Voice Surveys on students' and family's feelings of connectedness to school, and feeling respected at school	Student Voice Survey Question: Safety - 74.4% (I have a teacher I can talk to) Connectedness - 84.2% New Baseline for Year 2 using CHKS	baseline:		School perceived as very safe or safe 80% School connectedness 76%	N/A

Health Sciences High and Middle College USHMC Reard Masting Agende Tuesday April 22, 2025 at 0:20 AM

Goal Analysis [2024-25]

An analysis of how this goal was carried out in the previous year.

A description of overall implementation, including any substantive differences in planned actions and actual implementation of these actions, and any relevant challenges and successes experienced with implementation.

The implemented actions, measured by Metrics 2.1 and 2.3, resulted in improvements overall for students in CAASPP testing for ELA (overall increase of 52.9 points) and Math (overall increase of 63.2 points), and ELPAC data for ELP (14% increase). These successes were reflected on the California School Dashboard with a shift from the 2023 red indicators to yellow (ELA), orange (math), and green (ELP) for 2024. To continue to support growth in Metric 2.1, we began utilizing i-Ready diagnostics to measure and monitor student performance in ELA and mathematics. i-Ready data were utilized to inform instruction and intervention efforts. The school also purchased ELLevation software, allowing all staff access to data (i.e. ELPAC, CAASPP, i-Ready, and Achieve3000 scores) to better monitor student progress. A challenge to attend to are our scores on the California Science Test (Metric 2.2).

For Metric 2.4, the implementation of our College and Career program continues to support our students, resulting in 90% prepared (blue on the Dashboard for College/Career). The implementation of our academic programs allowed our graduation rate to grow to 98.5% while all student groups either maintained or increased.

We implemented a new team, the Student Engagement Team, to support restorative practices, attendance, and overall school climate to impact attendance and academics in response to our increase in suspensions from the 2023-24 school year.

An explanation of material differences between Budgeted Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures and/or Planned Percentages of Improved Services and Estimated Actual Percentages of Improved Services.

N/A

A description of the effectiveness or ineffectiveness of the specific actions to date in making progress toward the goal.

Our structures and delivery of professional development related to ELD, ELA, and attendance helped empower staff and teachers to effectively impact change for our students' learning and participation. Grade level teams had designated time to analyze i-Ready and CAASPP data to align practices and implement universal supports and targeted interventions.

An effective action was the use of i-Ready diagnostic testing to better understand students' reading and math skills. These diagnostics, administered three times each school year, were used to create universal academic classroom supports as well as small group interventions in the classroom. Additionally, the data were used to create intervention study groups with individualized lessons aimed to build the skills of our students. Our growth, as measured by i-Ready in 2024 was 75% of our students demonstrated growth or proficiency in Math and 71% demonstrated growth or proficiency in ELA, attesting to the effectiveness of our practices.

The use of an in-house designed curriculum for ISP was deemed ineffective leading to the purchasing of Edgenuity to better monitor student progress and impact student learning.

A description of any changes made to the planned goal, metrics, target outcomes, or actions for the coming year that resulted from reflections on prior practice.

For the coming year, we will continue to focus on growth for students in ELA, Math, and English Learner Proficiency to influence more change on the dashboard. We will continue to refine our ELD program in the classroom while considering model schools and evidence based practices. Staff will have access to ELLevation to monitor students within their classrooms to build targeted supports. We will also focus efforts on our science scores, with PLC time devoted to content departments in an effort to support vertical alignment and the rigorous demands of the Next Generation Science Standards.

A report of the Total Estimated Actual Expenditures for last year's actions may be found in the Annual Update Table. A report of the Estimated Actual Percentages of Improved Services for last year's actions may be found in the Contributing Actions Annual Update Table. Table.

		Health Sciences High and Middle College - HSHMC Board Meeting - Agenda - Tuesday April 22, 2025 at 9:30 AM		
Action #	Title	Description	Total Funds	Contributing
2.1	Attendance Support	We have an attendance Team that monitors attendance daily through huddles. The team reaches out to families to work on plans to increase attendance. Students who are not meeting attendance standards will receive counseling and home visits from attendance staff. (Title 1 and LCFF S/C; Dean of Students - a % of salary)	\$63,000.00	Yes
2.2	Professional Development	Staff will receive professional development and support for integrating effective, research-based strategies into their lessons to meet the needs of students who are struggling to meet academic benchmarks. The staff development will focus on improving outcomes measured in the California Dashboard, including scores in ELA, mathematics, and science. Another focus, based on student and parent feedback, will be to work in content groups on activities that reinforce the relevance of school learning to the world outside of school. Department and content PLCs will support staff in methods to identify student needs, based on interim assessments, and implement strategies to address those needs. Professional Development will also be provided to support HSHMC in building a positive school culture. MTSS Tier 2 supports will be planned, implemented and monitored for success. (Academic Coach and staff time; Title III, Title II, Title , LCFF S/C)	\$147,525.00	Yes
2.3	Educational Options	Students will benefit from access to a variety of learning formats and environments that will meet the needs of diverse learners and outside circumstances. This includes options for Extended Day and Year programs for interventions, and programs such as Independent Study. Also included are summer sessions, Saturday School and other types of interventions for students needing additional support. Staff will continue to investigate new and innovative options to meet student needs. The purchasing of Edgenuity to monitor students progress. (Title 1, LCFF S/C)	\$252,000.00	Yes

Action #	Title	Description	Total Funds	Contributing
2.4	College and Career	HSHMC will maintain a strong College and Career program that allows students to graduate ready to be successful in their future. CTE, College courses and career pathways are the cornerstones of our successful program. Planning, materials, curriculum and a variety of other components are needed to provide additional support to help all students achieve. Students will benefit from additional resources and workshops on preparing for college, preparing for a career, how to be successful in college, and financial literacy (Career Counselor, College Team Coordinator; LCFF S/C, CTE)	\$120,750.00	Yes
2.5	Positive School Environment	Students and staff will benefit from a schoolwide focus on maintaining a safe, positive learning environment through the use of SEL strategies, such as restorative practices. The work of the Student Engagement Team will focus on ensuring equitable practices, and the appreciation of diversity among all students and staff. On-going workshops will be provided to support these actions. Support for Foster Youth and students who are homeless will continue through the Dean of Students. A variety of clubs, sports and extra-curricular activities will provide positive experiences for students to engage in beyond the school day and will increase their connection to school. (Dean of Students; LCFF S/C)	\$147,000.00	Yes
2.6	Supplemental Support for at-risk students	a. Provide supplemental materials, software or hardware to differentiate instruction to meet the needs of students at-risk of not meeting academic benchmarks. Increased emphasis will be placed on accelerating student learning in the areas of Math and English Language Arts in order to propel all students, EL, Hispanic and SED students out of the orange and yellow in those areas on the California Schools Dashboard.	\$424,000.00	Yes

• • • •		Health Sciences High and Middle College - HSHMC Board Meeting - Agenda - Tuesday April 22, 2025 at 9:30 AM		
Action #	litle	Description	Total Funds	Contributing
		 b. Provide supplemental personnel (ie. Instructional Coaches, College and Career Counselor, Intervention Coordinator, Student Support Staff, etc.) focused on meeting the needs of unduplicated student groups. This also includes the Academic Recovery Program and Intervention classes. Supplemental professional development and supplies will be provided to meet the unique needs of identified students such as low income and homeless students. This may include virtual instruction supports, supplies and materials. MTSS Tier 2 supports will be developed and implemented. (Title 1, LCFF S/C, CSI) 		
2.7	Supplemental Support for English Learners	English Learner students will receive supplemental support from ELD Specialists who will supply push-in support and individual conferencing for EL students who are struggling academically to improve the success of that student group. (English Learner Progress = Red on the California School Dashboard) ELD Specialists and teachers will use a variety of literacy and language supports and assessments to monitor EL student progress and respond to identified needs (i.eReady, StudySync, Achieve3000, ELLevation, etc.). Professional development and coaching will support teachers on how to use needs assessments and research proven strategies to meet the needs of ELs, including LTELs in content area classes. HSHMC will work with SDCOE to identify processes and services to support ELs, and focus on promoting success among LTELs. (ELD Coordinator; Title III, LCFF S/C)	\$136,500.00	Yes
2.8	Supplemental Support for Students with Disabilities	Support will be provided to students with an IEP or 504 plan, consistent with supports identified in the plans.	\$5,250.00	No

Action #	Title	Health Sciences High and Middle College - HSHMC Board Meeting - Agenda - Tuesday April 22, 2025 at 9:30 AM Description	Total Funds	Contributing
2.9	Supplemental Support for SEL	Counselors will work with students who are struggling socially or emotionally and need extra support. Focused supports will be provided for students in foster care, or who are experiencing homelessness. HSHMC will work with community partners and organizations to provide higher levels of targeted support to students and families in need. This will include coordination of trauma-informed health, mental health and social services for students and families. Plans and support for this work will be provided through MTSS training and plan development, and through the Community Schools planned outreach to our educational partners. (Restorative Practices Support; Title I, LCFF S/C, CCSP)	\$57,750.00	Yes

Goal

Goal #	Description	Type of Goal
3	Student and family voice, in partnership with HSHMC staff, will build engagement and enhance the welcoming and inclusive climate and culture at HSHMC	Broad Goal
State Prior	rities addressed by this goal.	
	1: Basic (Conditions of Learning) 3: Parental Involvement (Engagement)	

An explanation of why the LEA has developed this goal.

HSHMC has a strong system of parent involvement and participation. Working with our parents, staff and community we continue to see this area as a priority and are always looking for ways to continue to improve. We believe that parent participation in their young adult's education is a key factor in enhancing student success.

Measuring and Reporting Results

Metric #	Metric	Baseline	Year 1 Outcome	Year 2 Outcome	Target for Year 3 Outcome	Current Difference from Baseline
3.1	The Local Indicator on Parent and Family Engagement ,for Seeking Input in Decision Making, #10 and #11.	#10 - Full implementation and Sustainability #11 - Full implementation and Sustainability	Full implementation and sustainability		 #10 - Full implementation and Sustainability #11 - Full implementation and Sustainability 	0
3.2	Number of outreach events held Number of parents who attended either one, or more, events	New metric - baseline to be established in Year 1. Outreach event number - 2	Outreach event: 3 Back to school night, Open House, and Symposium		Outreach event number = increase Percent of parents who attended at least one event = increase	Met (increased by one event)

Metric #	Metric	Baseline	Year 1 Outcome	Year 2 Outcome	Target for Year 3 Outcome	Current Difference from Baseline
3.4	Responses on Parent/Family Survey regarding - • feeling valued • feeling welcomed	Parent/Family Climate Survey - • feeling valued - 77% Agree or Strongly Agree • feeling welcomed - 68% Agree or Strongly Agree	We now have a new baseline from Fall 2024 Welcome and valued is >90% HSHMC encourages collaboration for inclusion and support for students is >90%		Welcome and valued >95% HSHMC encourages collaboration for inclusion and support for students >95%	N/A

Goal Analysis [2024-25]

An analysis of how this goal was carried out in the previous year.

A description of overall implementation, including any substantive differences in planned actions and actual implementation of these actions, and any relevant challenges and successes experienced with implementation.

We value the engagement of our community, and we successfully welcomed students, families, community members, and staff at multiple school events. We saw successes with our family outreach events through increased attendance based on our efforts to publicize these events coupled with our recruitment efforts. Our community liaison helped with family communication through regular email announcements, messaging on our website, personal phone calls home, and a presence at our DELAC meetings. Additionally, families had more opportunities to give formal feedback on our LCAP goals through digital and paper surveys at these events, and the inclusion of our LCAP survey on our monthly bulletins that get emailed to all families.

A difference in planned action was the use of a different survey to learn about parent and family climate. We used a shorter survey more targeted to our community as we believed this would reduce barriers for our families to give feedback. We saw more responses in the Fall of 2024.

An explanation of material differences between Budgeted Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures and/or Planned Percentages of Improved Services and Estimated Actual Percentages of Improved Services.

N/A

Health Sciences High and Middle College - HSHMC Board Meeting - Agenda - Tuesday April 22, 2025 at 9:30 AM A description of the effectiveness or ineffectiveness of the specific actions to date in making progress toward the goal.

We were effective in engaging families in DELAC meetings as though we acknowledge that an increase in participation is needed for the coming year. Our community liaison has been effectively providing families with information about the school, events, and improved access to our LCAP survey.

A description of any changes made to the planned goal, metrics, target outcomes, or actions for the coming year that resulted from reflections on prior practice.

We changed our survey tool to gather feedback from parents and families.

A report of the Total Estimated Actual Expenditures for last year's actions may be found in the Annual Update Table. A report of the Estimated Actual Percentages of Improved Services for last year's actions may be found in the Contributing Actions Annual Update Table. Table.

Action #	Title	Description	Total Funds	Contributing
3.1	Parent Leadership and Advisory Groups	Ensure that parents are actively involved in all advisory/leadership groups by ensuring the meetings are well publicized and held at times convenient for parents, providing translation/interpreters as needed, and removing other barriers to attendance. Training in the work of the advisory groups will be provided. Also increase meaningful involvement by parents, students and community in Leadership groups and in school events by improving communication and offering topics of interest to each group. Our Parent Liaison continues to be developed to assist families and gather more feedback from parents. (LCFF, Title I)	\$31,500.00	No
3.2	Communication and Outreach	Promote Parent Participation among all parents, including parents of unduplicated students and individuals with exceptional needs. Provide a variety of communication strategies to reach out to parents, families and the community. Include methods that provide channels for two-way communication and feedback with all parents including parents/guardians of unduplicated students and students with exceptional needs. This includes, but is not limited to, annual climate survey, annual calendar of parent events, hybrid in-person meetings, personal emails or phone calls,	\$21,050.00	Yes

Action #	Title	Description	Total Funds	Contributing
		etc. We have added additional features to PowerSchool to increase communication and provide more information to families.		
3.3	Workshops and Trainings	Provide Professional Learning for staff on the benefits of parent involvement and how to build stronger relationships with parents. Provide workshops for parents on the importance of being involved in the charter, the benefits, and how to support their young adult's education (both academic and social/emotional). Provide workshops on preparing for college and for careers, including financial information, writing resumes, etc. (Community School Team, College and Career Counselor, Dean of Students, and Parent Liaison; training time; LCFF S/C)	\$31,500.00	Yes

Goal

Goal #	Description	Type of Goal		
4				
State Priorities addressed by this goal.				

An explanation of why the LEA has developed this goal.

Measuring and Reporting Results

Goal Analysis [2024-25]

An analysis of how this goal was carried out in the previous year.

A description of overall implementation, including any substantive differences in planned actions and actual implementation of these actions, and any relevant challenges and successes experienced with implementation.

An explanation of material differences between Budgeted Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures and/or Planned Percentages of Improved Services and Estimated Actual Percentages of Improved Services.

A description of the effectiveness or ineffectiveness of the specific actions to date in making progress toward the goal.

Health Sciences High and Middle College - HSHMC Board Meeting - Agenda - Tuesday April 22, 2025 at 9:30 AM

A description of any changes made to the planned goal, metrics, target outcomes, or actions for the coming year that resulted from reflections on prior practice.

A report of the Total Estimated Actual Expenditures for last year's actions may be found in the Annual Update Table. A report of the Estimated Actual Percentages of Improved Services for last year's actions may be found in the Contributing Actions Annual Update Table. Table.

Action # Title	Description	Total Funds	Contributing
----------------	-------------	-------------	--------------

Goal

Goal #	Description	Type of Goal		
5				
State Priorities addressed by this goal.				

An explanation of why the LEA has developed this goal.

Measuring and Reporting Results

Metric #	Metric	Baseline	Year 1 Outcome	Year 2 Outcome	Target for Year 3 Outcome	Current Difference from Baseline
----------	--------	----------	----------------	----------------	------------------------------	-------------------------------------

Goal Analysis [2024-25]

An analysis of how this goal was carried out in the previous year.

A description of overall implementation, including any substantive differences in planned actions and actual implementation of these actions, and any relevant challenges and successes experienced with implementation.

An explanation of material differences between Budgeted Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures and/or Planned Percentages of Improved Services and Estimated Actual Percentages of Improved Services.

A description of the effectiveness or ineffectiveness of the specific actions to date in making progress toward the goal.

Health Sciences High and Middle College - HSHMC Board Meeting - Agenda - Tuesday April 22, 2025 at 9:30 AM

A description of any changes made to the planned goal, metrics, target outcomes, or actions for the coming year that resulted from reflections on prior practice.

A report of the Total Estimated Actual Expenditures for last year's actions may be found in the Annual Update Table. A report of the Estimated Actual Percentages of Improved Services for last year's actions may be found in the Contributing Actions Annual Update Table. Table.

Action # Title	Description	Total Funds	Contributing
----------------	-------------	-------------	--------------

Increased or Improved Services for Foster Youth, English Learners, and Low-Income Students [2025-26]

Total Projected LCFF Supplemental and/or Concentration Grants	Projected Additional 15 percent LCFF Concentration Grant
\$1,043,608	\$30,799

Required Percentage to Increase or Improve Services for the LCAP Year

Projected Percentage to Increase or Improve Services for the Coming School Year		LCFF Carryover — Dollar	Total Percentage to Increase or Improve Services for the Coming School Year
16.891%	0.000%	\$0.00	16.891%

The Budgeted Expenditures for Actions identified as Contributing may be found in the Contributing Actions Table.

Required Descriptions

LEA-wide and Schoolwide Actions

For each action being provided to an entire LEA or school, provide an explanation of (1) the unique identified need(s) of the unduplicated student group(s) for whom the action is principally directed, (2) how the action is designed to address the identified need(s) and why it is being provided on an LEA or schoolwide basis, and (3) the metric(s) used to measure the effectiveness of the action in improving outcomes for the unduplicated student group(s).

Goal and Action #	Identified Need(s)	How the Action(s) Address Need(s) and Why it is Provided on an LEA-wide or Schoolwide Basis	Metric(s) to Monitor Effectiveness
2.1	Action: Attendance Support Need: Action: Attendance Support Need: Attendance rates are at 92% and Chronic Absenteeism is at 28%. Students cannot learn if they aren't in school Scope:	Chronic absenteeism and attendance are challenges for all students but data shows a larger percent of those not attending are unduplicated students. Attendance procedures and protocols that work with all students and parents to improve attendance will benefit all students.	Attendance and Chronic Absenteeism

	Health Sciences High and Middle College - HSHMC Board Meeting - Agenda - Tuesday April 22, 2025 at 9:30 AM				
Goal and Action #	Identified Need(s)	How the Action(s) Address Need(s) and Why it is Provided on an LEA-wide or Schoolwide Basis	Metric(s) to Monitor Effectiveness		
	LEA-wide				
2.2	Action: Professional Development Need: While overall scores in ELA and Math have increased overall, we still can focus on working towards supporting students to meet grade level standards assessed on SBAC. Therefore, HSHMC needs to find strategies to improve student results. Scope: LEA-wide	The focus of the PD is on ways to meet the needs of diverse and struggling learners, with a focus on students who are Socioeconomically Disadvantaged, English Learners, Foster Youth or Homeless students. All students can benefit from these additional strategies.	Academic Achievement improvement in ELA and Math, with disaggregated scores.		
2.3	Action: Educational Options Need: Students with more educational challenges have been more strongly impacted by the pandemic and subsequent loss of learning. This has made their attendance at school more problematic. Educational Options may meet their needs and help them to succeed. Scope: LEA-wide	These options are especially helpful for students who may need more time or additional instruction to master required concepts, or need a different environment and more individualized instruction. HSHMC staff will work to meet all students where they are and help them grow to be successful in their future.	Academic Achievement improvement in ELA and Math, with disaggregated scores.		

	Health Sciences High and Middle College - HSHMC Board Meeting - Agenda - Tuesday April 22, 2025 at 9:30 AM				
Goal and Action #	Identified Need(s)	How the Action(s) Address Need(s) and Why it is Provided on an LEA-wide or Schoolwide Basis	Metric(s) to Monitor Effectiveness		
2.4	Action: College and Career Need: Longitudinal data going back for decades has shown that unduplicated student groups tend to be less likely to go to college, or to get specialized career certificates or degrees. Scope: LEA-wide	Strategies and support by dedicated staff will allow all students to graduate ready to be successful in college or a career. Data shows that EL/LI/FY tend to be less successful in these areas, so the extra support is very important, but all students can benefit from these actions.	Disaggregated Graduation and College/Career Indicator results		
2.5	Action: Positive School Environment Need: Survey results for feelings of connectedness to the school, and safety demonstrate there is a need for improvement in this area. Scope: LEA-wide	Focuses on providing a safe, positive learning environment where all students feel welcome and get the support they need to be successful. Again, this is usually more of a challenge for unduplicated students who may feel marginalized or less connected to school.	California Healthy Kids Survey		
2.6	Action: Supplemental Support for at-risk students Need: See test data in Action 2.1 Scope: LEA-wide	These services/materials/personnel support the differentiation of instruction to meet the needs of students at-risk of not meeting academic benchmarks, however all students may also benefit. MTSS Tier 2 strategies.	Academic Achievement improvement in ELA and Math, with disaggregated scores.		

Goal and Action #	Identified Need(s)	How the Action(s) Address Need(s) and Why it is Provided on an LEA-wide or Schoolwide Basis	Metric(s) to Monitor Effectiveness
2.9	Action: Supplemental Support for SEL Need: Attendance and Chronic Absenteeism rates seem to indicate that some students need additional, more targeted, interventions to feel safe and connected to school. Scope: LEA-wide Schoolwide	Counselors will work with students to provide higher levels for support to students and families in need, including reaching out to community partners as needed. Research shows that the students with higher level needs are more likely to come from one of the unduplicated student groups.	Attendance and Chronic Absenteeism, along with student and family surveys
3.2	Action: Communication and Outreach Need: Parents of unduplicated students attend fewer school events and tend to be less involved in their children's education, for a variety of reasons, including available time, or not feeling comfortable in an education setting. Scope: LEA-wide	HSHMC wants to increase the participation and involvement of all parents, their Educational Partners, and of their surrounding community.	# of events and attendance # at those events
3.3	Action: Workshops and Trainings Need: To increase the understanding and knowledge base of parents of unduplicated students in HSHMC via workshops and trainings, so they are better able to help their children in school and as they move on to college and career.	All parents could benefit from the information shared at the workshops.	Workshop attendance and parent survey results.

Goal and Action #	Identified Need(s)	How the Action(s) Address Need(s) and Why it is Provided on an LEA-wide or Schoolwide Basis	Metric(s) to Monitor Effectiveness
	Current parents have requested more of these types of workshops.		
	Scope: LEA-wide		

Limited Actions

For each action being solely provided to one or more unduplicated student group(s), provide an explanation of (1) the unique identified need(s) of the unduplicated student group(s) being served, (2) how the action is designed to address the identified need(s), and (3) how the effectiveness of the action in improving outcomes for the unduplicated student group(s) will be measured.

Goal and Action #	Identified Need(s)	How the Action(s) are Designed to Address Need(s)	Metric(s) to Monitor Effectiveness
2.7	Action: Supplemental Support for English Learners Need: English Learners are scoring below other student groups on the ELA SBAC test. Scope: Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)	This action is focused on English Learner students and providing them with additional specialized instruction and intervention strategies that will support their improvement in English proficiency and support them to access California State Content standards in all areas.	English Learner Progress Indicator results on the California Schools Dashboard.

For any limited action contributing to meeting the increased or improved services requirement that is associated with a Planned Percentage of Improved Services in the Contributing Summary Table rather than an expenditure of LCFF funds, describe the methodology that was used to determine the contribution of the action towards the proportional percentage, as applicable.

NA

Additional Concentration Grant Funding

A description of the plan for how the additional concentration grant add-on funding identified above will be used to increase the number of staff providing direct services to students at schools that have a high concentration (above 55 percent) of foster youth, English learners, and low-income students, as applicable.

HSHMC Charter School has an unduplicated student count of 77.08%, and will use the concentration grant add-on funding to increase the time/hours allocated to staff who are already engaged in direct services to students at HSHMC, with a focus on the needs of Low Income, English Learners and/or Foster Youth. This will allow the school to expand services listed in the LCAP in Goal 2, Actions 1 and 3. Action 1 - Provides supplemental personnel (i.e. Instructional Coaches, Graduation coach, RTI teacher, etc.) focused on meeting the needs of unduplicated student groups. This also includes the Academic Recovery Program and HUB lab that serve students in grades 9-12. Action 3 - Students who are not meeting attendance standards will receive counseling and home visits from attendance staff. HSHMC is a single school charter, so the chart below is not applicable.

Staff-to-student ratios by type of school and concentration of unduplicated students	Schools with a student concentration of 55 percent or less	Schools with a student concentration of greater than 55 percent
Staff-to-student ratio of classified staff providing direct services to students	NA	NA
Staff-to-student ratio of certificated staff providing direct services to students	NA	NA

2025-26 Total Expenditures Table

LCAP Year	1. Projected LCFF Base Grant (Input Dollar Amount)	2. FIOJECIEU LOFF Supplemental and/or	3. Projected Percentage to Increase or Improve Services for the Coming School Year (2 divided by 1)	Borcontago	Total Percentage to Increase or Improve Services for the Coming School Year (3 + Carryover %)		
Totals	6,178,665	1,043,608	16.891%	0.000%	16.891%		
Totals	LCFF Funds	Other State Funds	Local Funds	Federal Funds	Total Funds	Total Personnel	Total Non-personnel
Totals	\$4,742,175.00	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$156,500.00	\$4,898,675.00	\$4,603,675.00	\$295,000.00

Goal #	Action #	Action Title	Student Group(s)	Contributing to Increased or Improved Services?	Scope	Unduplicated Student Group(s)	Location	Time Span	Total Personnel	Total Non- personnel	LCFF Funds	Other State Funds	Local Funds	Federal Funds	Total Funds	Planned Percentage of Improved Services
1	1.1	Basic Services	All	No			All Schools		\$3,255,000 .00	\$20,000.00	\$3,275,000.00				\$3,275,0 00.00	
1	1.2	Beyond Credentialing	All	No					\$0.00	\$115,500.00	\$115,500.00				\$115,500 .00	
1	1.3	Facilities and Safety	All	No			All Schools		\$0.00	\$31,500.00	\$31,500.00				\$31,500. 00	
1	1.4	Academic Program	All	No			All Schools		\$15,850.00	\$2,000.00	\$17,850.00				\$17,850. 00	
1	1.5	Social/emotional Safety	All	No			All Schools		\$21,000.00	\$0.00	\$21,000.00				\$21,000. 00	
2	2.1	Attendance Support	English Learners Foster Youth Low Income	Yes	LEA- wide	English Learners Foster Youth Low Income	All Schools		\$63,000.00	\$0.00	\$58,000.00			\$5,000.00	\$63,000. 00	
2	2.2	Professional Development	English Learners Foster Youth Low Income	Yes	LEA- wide	English Learners Foster Youth Low Income	All Schools		\$147,525.0 0	\$0.00	\$122,025.00			\$25,500.00	\$147,525 .00	
2	2.3	Educational Options	English Learners Foster Youth Low Income	Yes	LEA- wide	English Learners Foster Youth Low Income	All Schools		\$162,000.0 0	\$90,000.00	\$236,000.00			\$16,000.00	\$252,000 .00	
2	2.4	College and Career	English Learners Foster Youth Low Income	Yes	LEA- wide	English Learners Foster Youth Low Income	All Schools		\$115,750.0 0	\$5,000.00	\$120,750.00				\$120,750 .00	
2	2.5	Positive School Environment	English Learners Foster Youth Low Income		LEA- wide	English Learners Foster Youth Low Income	All Schools		\$132,000.0 0	\$15,000.00	\$147,000.00				\$147,000 .00	

2025-26 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Health Sciences High and Middle College

Goal #	Action #	Action Title	Student Group(s)	Contributing to Increased or Improved Services?	Scope	Unduplicated Student Group(s)	Location	Time Span	Total Personnel	Total Non- personnel	LCFF Funds	Other State Funds Local Fund	ls Federal Funds	Total Funds	Planned Percentage of Improved Services
2	2.6	Supplemental Support for at-risk students	English Learners Foster Youth Low Income	Yes	LEA- wide	English Learners Foster Youth Low Income	All Schools		\$424,000.0 0	\$0.00	\$334,000.00		\$90,000.00	\$424,000 .00	
2	2.7	Supplemental Support for English Learners	English Learners	Yes	Limited to Undupli cated Student Group(s)	Learners	All Schools		\$136,500.0 0	\$0.00	\$126,500.00		\$10,000.00	\$136,500 .00	
2	2.8	Supplemental Support for Students with Disabilities	Students with Disabilities	No			All Schools		\$5,250.00	\$0.00	\$5,250.00			\$5,250.0 0	
2	2.9	Supplemental Support for SEL	English Learners Foster Youth Low Income	Yes	LEA- wide School wide	English Learners Foster Youth Low Income	All Schools		\$52,750.00	\$5,000.00	\$57,750.00			\$57,750. 00	
3	3.1	Parent Leadership and Advisory Groups	All	No			All Schools		\$26,500.00	\$5,000.00	\$21,500.00		\$10,000.00	\$31,500. 00	
3	3.2	Communication and Outreach	English Learners Foster Youth Low Income	Yes	LEA- wide	English Learners Foster Youth Low Income	All Schools		\$20,050.00	\$1,000.00	\$21,050.00			\$21,050. 00	
3	3.3	Workshops and Trainings	English Learners Foster Youth Low Income	Yes	LEA- wide	English Learners Foster Youth Low Income	All Schools		\$26,500.00	\$5,000.00	\$31,500.00			\$31,500. 00	

2025-26 Contributing Actions Table

LCF	ojected F Base rant	2. Projected LCFF Supplemental and/or Concentration Grants	3. Projected Percentage to Increase or Improve Services for the Coming School Year (2 divided by 1)	age to se or oveCarryover — Percentage (Percentage from Prior Year ed byPercentage Increase or Improve Services for the Coming School Year Other PriorPercentage to Contributing Expenditures (LCFF Funds)Planned Percentage of Improved Services (LCFF Funds)Percentage of Improved Services (%)Percentage of Improved Services Services (%)Percentage of Improved Services (%)Percentage of Improved Services (%)Percentage of Improved Services (%)Percentage of Improved Services (%)Percentage of Improved Services (%)Percentage of Improved Services (%)Percentage of 		Planned Percentage to Increase or Improve Services for the Coming School Year (4 divided by 1, plus 5)		Totals by Type	Total LCFF Funds			
6,17	78,665	1,043,608	16.891%	0.000%	16.891%	\$1,254,575.00	0.00	0%	20.305	%	Total:	\$1,254,575.00
											LEA-wide Total:	\$1,128,075.00
										I	Limited Total:	\$126,500.00
											Schoolwide Total:	\$57,750.00
Goal	Action #	Action	Title	Contributing to Increased or Improved Services?	Scope	Unduplic Student Gr		Location		Expen Con Actic	lanned nditures for ntributing ons (LCFF Funds)	Planned Percentage of Improved Services (%)
2	2.1	Attendance Su	pport	Yes	LEA-wide	English Le Foster You Low Incom	ıth	s All Schools		\$58	8,000.00	
2	2.2	Professional De	evelopment	Yes	LEA-wide	English Learners All S Foster Youth Low Income		All Schools \$		\$12	2,025.00	
2	2.3	Educational Op	otions	Yes	LEA-wide	English Le Foster You Low Incom	ıth	All Scho	ools	\$23	6,000.00	
2	2.4	College and Ca	areer	Yes	LEA-wide	English Le Foster You Low Incom	ıth	All Scho	ools	\$12	20,750.00	
2	2.5	Positive School Environment	I	Yes	LEA-wide	English Le Foster You Low Incom	ıth	All Scho	ools	\$14	7,000.00	
2	2.6	Supplemental S at-risk students		Yes	LEA-wide	English Le Foster You Low Incom	arners All Scho		All Schools \$3		34,000.00	
2	2.7	Supplemental S English Learne		Yes	Limited to Unduplicated	English Le	arners	All Scho	ools	\$12	26,500.00	

2025-26 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Health Sciences High and Middle College Powered by BoardOnTrack

		Health Sc	iences High and Middle C	ollege - HSHMC Board M	leeting - Agenda - Tuesday	/ April 22, 2025 at 9:30 A	M	
Goal	Action #	Action Title	Contributing to Increased or Improved Services?	Scope	Unduplicated Student Group(s)	Location	Planned Expenditures for Contributing Actions (LCFF Funds)	Planned Percentage of Improved Services (%)
				Student Group(s)				
2	2.9	Supplemental Support for SEL	Yes	LEA-wide Schoolwide	English Learners Foster Youth Low Income	All Schools	\$57,750.00	
3	3.2	Communication and Outreach	Yes	LEA-wide	English Learners Foster Youth Low Income	All Schools	\$21,050.00	
3	3.3	Workshops and Trainings	Yes	LEA-wide	English Learners Foster Youth Low Income	All Schools	\$31,500.00	
2024-25 Annual Update Table

Totals	Last Year's Total Planned Expenditures (Total Funds)	Total Estimated Expenditures (Total Funds)
Totals	\$4,626,500.00	\$3,847,261.38

Last Year's Goal #	Last Year's Action #	Prior Action/Service Title	Contributed to Increased or Improved Services?	Last Year's Planned Expenditures (Total Funds)	Estimated Actual Expenditures (Input Total Funds)					
1	1.1	Basic Services	No	\$3,120,000.00	\$2,600,000.00					
1	1.2	Beyond Credentialing	No	\$110,000.00	\$124,164.00					
1	1.3	Facilities and Safety	No	\$30,000.00	\$29,266.00					
1	1.4	Academic Program	No	\$17,000.00	\$10,456.50					
1	1.5	Social/emotional Safety	No	\$20,000.00	\$23,365.20					
2	2.1	Attendance Support	Yes	\$60,000.00	\$28,093.00					
2	2.2	Professional Development	Yes	\$140,500.00	\$117,192.68					
2	2.3	Educational Options	Yes	\$200,000.00	\$100,910.00					
2	2.4	College and Career	Yes	\$115,000.00	\$145,568.00					
2	2.5	Positive School Environment	Yes	\$140,000.00	\$88,093.00					
2	2.6	Supplemental Support for at-risk students	Yes	\$404,000.00	\$362,935.00					
2025-26 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Health Sciences High and Middle College Page 47 of 8										

2025-26 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Health Sciences High and Midule College Powered by BoardOnTrack

Health Sciences High and Middle College - HSHMC Board Meeting - Agenda - Tuesday April 22, 2025 at 9:30 AM										
Last Year's Goal #	Last Year's Action #			Last Year's Planned Expenditures (Total Funds)	Estimated Actual Expenditures (Input Total Funds)					
2	2.7	Supplemental Support for English Learners	Yes	\$130,000.00	\$74,395.00					
2	2.8	Supplemental Support for Students with Disabilities	No	\$5,000.00	\$3,705					
2	2.9	Supplemental Support for SEL	Yes	\$55,000.00	\$64,178.00					
3	3.1	Parent Leadership and Advisory Groups	No	\$30,000.00	\$18,260.00					
3	3.2	Communication and Outreach	Yes	\$20,000.00	\$28,340.00					
3	3.3	Workshops and Trainings	Yes	\$30,000.00	\$28,340.00					

2024-25 Contributing Actions Annual Update Table

LC Supple and Concer Gra (Input	imated FF emental d/or ntration ntration Dollar Dollar punt)	4. Total Planned Contributing Expenditures (LCFF Funds)	7. Total Es Expenditu Contribu Actio (LCFF Fu	ures for uting ns	Differenc Between Pla and Estima Expenditure Contributi Actions (Subtract 7 f 4)	nned Ited s for ng	5. Total Planne Percentage o Improved Services (%)	f	8. Total Estimated Percentage of Improved Services (%)	Betwee and Perc Im S (Subt	fference een Planned Estimated centage of proved ervices cract 5 from 8)	
		\$1,148,000.00	\$1,038,0	44.68	\$109,955.3	32	0.000%		0.000%	C	0.000%	
Last Year's Goal #	Last Year's Action #	Prior Action/Ser	vice Title	Incre	ibuting to eased or ed Services?	Expe Co Act	ear's Planned enditures for ontributing ions (LCFF Funds)	E	stimated Actual xpenditures for Contributing Actions put LCFF Funds)	of In	Percentage nproved rvices	Estimated Actual Percentage of Improved Services (Input Percentage)
2	2.1	Attendance Support			Yes	\$	55,000.00		\$28,093.00			
2	2.2	Professional Development		Yes		\$1	15,000.00	\$117,192.68				
2	2.3	Educational Options		Yes		\$184,000.00			\$100,910.00			
2	2.4	College and Career		Yes		\$1	15,000.00		\$145,568.00			
2	2.5	Positive School Environment			Yes	\$1	40,000.00		\$88,093.00			
2	2.6	Supplemental Support for at- risk students			Yes	\$3	314,000.00		\$362,935.00			
2	2.7	Supplemental Support for English Learners			Yes	\$1	20,000.00		\$74,395.00			
2	2.9	Supplemental Supp	ental Support for SEL		Yes	\$!	55,000.00		\$64,178.00			
3	3.2	Communication and Outreach			Yes	\$2	20,000.00		\$28,340.00			
3	3.3	Workshops and Tra	ainings		Yes	\$:	30,000.00		\$28,340.00			

Health Sciences High and Middle College - HSHMC Board Meeting - Agenda - Tuesday April 22, 2025 at 9:30 AM 2024-25 LCFF Carryover Table

9. Estimated Actual LCFF Base Grant (Input Dollar Amount)	6. Estimated Actual LCFF Supplemental and/or Concentration Grants	LCFF Carryover — Percentage (Percentage from Prior Year)	Services for the	for Contributing Actions	8. Total Estimated Actual Percentage of Improved Services (%)	11. Estimated Actual Percentage of Increased or Improved Services (7 divided by 9, plus 8)	12. LCFF Carryover – Dollar Amount (Subtract 11 from 10 and multiply by 9)	13. LCFF Carryover — Percentage (12 divided by 9)
\$6,018,241		0.00%	0.000%	\$1,038,044.68	0.000%	17.248%	\$0.00	0.000%

Local Control and Accountability Plan Instructions

Plan Summary

Engaging Educational Partners

Goals and Actions

Increased or Improved Services for Foster Youth, English Learners, and Low-Income Students

For additional questions or technical assistance related to the completion of the Local Control and Accountability Plan (LCAP) template, please contact the local county office of education (COE), or the California Department of Education's (CDE's) Local Agency Systems Support Office, by phone at 916-319-0809 or by email at <u>LCFF@cde.ca.gov</u>.

Introduction and Instructions

The Local Control Funding Formula (LCFF) requires local educational agencies (LEAs) to engage their local educational partners in an annual planning process to evaluate their progress within eight state priority areas encompassing all statutory metrics (COEs have 10 state priorities). LEAs document the results of this planning process in the LCAP using the template adopted by the State Board of Education.

The LCAP development process serves three distinct, but related functions:

- Comprehensive Strategic Planning: The process of developing and annually updating the LCAP supports comprehensive strategic planning, particularly to address and reduce disparities in opportunities and outcomes between student groups indicated by the California School Dashboard (California Education Code [EC] Section 52064[e][1]). Strategic planning that is comprehensive connects budgetary decisions to teaching and learning performance data. LEAs should continually evaluate the hard choices they make about the use of limited resources to meet student and community needs to ensure opportunities and outcomes are improved for all students.
- Meaningful Engagement of Educational Partners: The LCAP development process should result in an LCAP that reflects decisions made through meaningful engagement (EC Section 52064[e][1]). Local educational partners possess valuable perspectives and insights about an LEA's programs and services. Effective strategic planning will incorporate these perspectives and insights in order to identify potential goals and actions to be included in the LCAP.
- Accountability and Compliance: The LCAP serves an important accountability function because the nature of some LCAP template sections require LEAs to show that they have complied with various requirements specified in the LCFF statutes and regulations, most notably:
 - Demonstrating that LEAs are increasing or improving services for foster youth, English learners, including long-term English learners, and low-income students in proportion to the amount of additional funding those students generate under LCFF (EC Section 52064[b][4-6]).
 - Establishing goals, supported by actions and related expenditures, that address the statutory priority areas and statutory metrics (EC sections 52064[b][1] and [2]).
 - NOTE: As specified in EC Section 62064(b)(1), the LCAP must provide a description of the annual goals, for all pupils and each subgroup of pupils identified pursuant to EC Section 52052, to be achieved for each of the state priorities. Beginning in 2023–24, EC

Health Sciences High and Middle College - HSHMC Board Meeting - Agenda - Tuesday April 22, 2025 at 9:30 AM Section 52052 identifies long-term English learners as a separate and distinct pupil subgroup with a numerical significance at 15 students.

- Annually reviewing and updating the LCAP to reflect progress toward the goals (EC Section 52064[b][7]).
- Ensuring that all increases attributable to supplemental and concentration grant calculations, including concentration grant add-on funding and/or LCFF carryover, are reflected in the LCAP (EC sections 52064[b][6], [8], and [11]).

The LCAP template, like each LEA's final adopted LCAP, is a document, not a process. LEAs must use the template to memorialize the outcome of their LCAP development process, which must: (a) reflect comprehensive strategic planning, particularly to address and reduce disparities in opportunities and outcomes between student groups indicated by the California School Dashboard (Dashboard), (b) through meaningful engagement with educational partners that (c) meets legal requirements, as reflected in the final adopted LCAP. The sections included within the LCAP template do not and cannot reflect the full development process, just as the LCAP template itself is not intended as a tool for engaging educational partners.

If a county superintendent of schools has jurisdiction over a single school district, the county board of education and the governing board of the school district may adopt and file for review and approval a single LCAP consistent with the requirements in EC sections 52060, 52062, 52066, 52068, and 52070. The LCAP must clearly articulate to which entity's budget (school district or county superintendent of schools) all budgeted and actual expenditures are aligned.

The revised LCAP template for the 2024–25, 2025–26, and 2026–27 school years reflects statutory changes made through Senate Bill 114 (Committee on Budget and Fiscal Review), Chapter 48, Statutes of 2023 and Senate Bill 153, Chapter 38, Statues of 2024.

At its most basic, the adopted LCAP should attempt to distill not just what the LEA is doing for students in transitional kindergarten through grade twelve (TK–12), but also allow educational partners to understand why, and whether those strategies are leading to improved opportunities and outcomes for students. LEAs are strongly encouraged to use language and a level of detail in their adopted LCAPs intended to be meaningful and accessible for the LEA's diverse educational partners and the broader public.

In developing and finalizing the LCAP for adoption, LEAs are encouraged to keep the following overarching frame at the forefront of the strategic planning and educational partner engagement functions:

Given present performance across the state priorities and on indicators in the Dashboard, how is the LEA using its budgetary resources to respond to TK–12 student and community needs, and address any performance gaps, including by meeting its obligation to increase or improve services for foster youth, English learners, and low-income students?

LEAs are encouraged to focus on a set of metrics and actions which, based on research, experience, and input gathered from educational partners, the LEA believes will have the biggest impact on behalf of its TK–12 students.

These instructions address the requirements for each section of the LCAP but may include information about effective practices when developing the LCAP and completing the LCAP document. Additionally, the beginning of each template section includes information emphasizing the purpose that section serves.

Plan Summary

Purpose

A well-developed Plan Summary section provides a meaningful context for the LCAP. This section provides information about an LEA's community as well as relevant information about student needs and performance. In order to present a meaningful context for the rest of the LCAP, the content of this section should be clearly and meaningfully related to the content included throughout each subsequent section of the LCAP.

Requirements and Instructions

General Information

A description of the LEA, its schools, and its students in grades transitional kindergarten–12, as applicable to the LEA. LEAs may also provide information about their strategic plan, vision, etc.

Briefly describe the LEA, its schools, and its students in grades TK-12, as applicable to the LEA.

- For example, information about an LEA in terms of geography, enrollment, employment, the number and size of specific schools, recent community challenges, and other such information the LEA may wish to include can enable a reader to more fully understand the LEA's LCAP.
- LEAs may also provide information about their strategic plan, vision, etc.
- As part of this response, identify all schools within the LEA receiving Equity Multiplier funding.

Reflections: Annual Performance

A reflection on annual performance based on a review of the California School Dashboard (Dashboard) and local data.

Reflect on the LEA's annual performance on the Dashboard and local data. This may include both successes and challenges identified by the LEA during the development process.

LEAs are encouraged to highlight how they are addressing the identified needs of student groups, and/or schools within the LCAP as part of this response.

As part of this response, the LEA must identify the following, which will remain unchanged during the three-year LCAP cycle:

- Any school within the LEA that received the lowest performance level on one or more state indicators on the 2023 Dashboard;
- Any student group within the LEA that received the lowest performance level on one or more state indicators on the 2023 Dashboard; and/or
- Any student group within a school within the LEA that received the lowest performance level on one or more state indicators on the 2023 Dashboard.

EC Section 52064.4 requires that an LEA that has unexpended Learning Recovery Emergency Block Grant (LREBG) funds must include one or more actions funded with LREBG funds within the 2025-26, 2026-27 and 2027-28 LCAPs, as applicable to the LEA. To implement the requirements of EC Section 52064.4, all LEAs must do the following:

- For the 2025–26, 2026–27, and 2027–28 LCAP years, identify whether or not the LEA has unexpended LREBG funds for the applicable LCAP year.
 - If the LEA has unexpended LREBG funds the LEA must provide the following:
 - The goal and action number for each action that will be funded, either in whole or in part, with LREBG funds; and
 - An explanation of the rationale for selecting each action funded with LREBG funds. This explanation must include:
 - An explanation of how the action is aligned with the allowable uses of funds identified in <u>EC Section 32526(c)(2)</u>; and
 - An explanation of how the action is expected to address the area(s) of need of students and schools identified in the needs assessment required by <u>EC Section 32526(d)</u>.
 - For information related to the allowable uses of funds and the required needs assessment, please see the Program Information tab on the <u>LREBG Program Information</u> web page.
 - Actions may be grouped together for purposes of these explanations.
 - The LEA may provide these explanations as part of the action description rather than as part of the Reflections: Annual Performance.
 - If the LEA does not have unexpended LREBG funds, the LEA is not required to conduct the needs assessment required by EC Section 32526(d), to provide the information identified above or to include actions funded with LREBG funds within the 2025-26, 2026-27 and 2027-28 LCAPs.

Reflections: Technical Assistance

As applicable, a summary of the work underway as part of technical assistance.

Annually identify the reason(s) the LEA is eligible for or has requested technical assistance consistent with EC sections 47607.3, 52071, 52071.5, 52072, or 52072.5, and provide a summary of the work underway as part of receiving technical assistance. The most common form of this technical assistance is frequently referred to as Differentiated Assistance, however this also includes LEAs that have requested technical assistance from their COE.

• If the LEA is not eligible for or receiving technical assistance, the LEA may respond to this prompt as "Not Applicable."

Health Sciences High and Middle College - HSHMC Board Meeting - Agenda - Tuesday April 22, 2025 at 9:30 AM Comprehensive Support and Improvement

An LEA with a school or schools identified for comprehensive support and improvement (CSI) under the Every Student Succeeds Act must respond to the following prompts:

Schools Identified

A list of the schools in the LEA that are eligible for comprehensive support and improvement.

• Identify the schools within the LEA that have been identified for CSI.

Support for Identified Schools

A description of how the LEA has or will support its eligible schools in developing comprehensive support and improvement plans.

• Describe how the LEA has or will support the identified schools in developing CSI plans that included a school-level needs assessment, evidencebased interventions, and the identification of any resource inequities to be addressed through the implementation of the CSI plan.

Monitoring and Evaluating Effectiveness

A description of how the LEA will monitor and evaluate the plan to support student and school improvement.

• Describe how the LEA will monitor and evaluate the implementation and effectiveness of the CSI plan to support student and school improvement.

Engaging Educational Partners

Purpose

Significant and purposeful engagement of parents, students, educators, and other educational partners, including those representing the student groups identified by LCFF, is critical to the development of the LCAP and the budget process. Consistent with statute, such engagement should support comprehensive strategic planning, particularly to address and reduce disparities in opportunities and outcomes between student groups indicated by the Dashboard, accountability, and improvement across the state priorities and locally identified priorities (EC Section 52064[e][1]). Engagement of educational partners is an ongoing, annual process.

This section is designed to reflect how the engagement of educational partners influenced the decisions reflected in the adopted LCAP. The goal is to allow educational partners that participated in the LCAP development process and the broader public to understand how the LEA engaged educational partners and the impact of that engagement. LEAs are encouraged to keep this goal in the forefront when completing this section.

Requirements

Requirements

School districts and COEs: <u>*EC* Section 52060(g)</u> and <u>*EC* Section 52066(g)</u> specify the educational partners that must be consulted when developing the LCAP:

• Teachers,

2025-26 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Health Sciences High and Middle College

- Principals,
- Administrators,
- Other school personnel,
- Local bargaining units of the LEA,
- Parents, and
- Students

A school district or COE receiving Equity Multiplier funds must also consult with educational partners at schools generating Equity Multiplier funds in the development of the LCAP, specifically, in the development of the required focus goal for each applicable school.

Before adopting the LCAP, school districts and COEs must share it with the applicable committees, as identified below under Requirements and Instructions. The superintendent is required by statute to respond in writing to the comments received from these committees. School districts and COEs must also consult with the special education local plan area administrator(s) when developing the LCAP.

Charter schools: <u>EC Section 47606.5(d)</u> requires that the following educational partners be consulted with when developing the LCAP:

- Teachers,
- Principals,
- Administrators,
- Other school personnel,
- Parents, and
- Students

A charter school receiving Equity Multiplier funds must also consult with educational partners at the school generating Equity Multiplier funds in the development of the LCAP, specifically, in the development of the required focus goal for the school.

The LCAP should also be shared with, and LEAs should request input from, schoolsite-level advisory groups, as applicable (e.g., schoolsite councils, English Learner Advisory Councils, student advisory groups, etc.), to facilitate alignment between schoolsite and district-level goals. Information and resources that support effective engagement, define student consultation, and provide the requirements for advisory group composition, can be found under Resources on the <u>CDE's LCAP webpage</u>.

Before the governing board/body of an LEA considers the adoption of the LCAP, the LEA must meet the following legal requirements:

- For school districts, see *Education Code* Section 52062;
 - **Note:** Charter schools using the LCAP as the School Plan for Student Achievement must meet the requirements of *EC* Section 52062(a).
- For COEs, see <u>Education Code Section 52068</u>; and
- For charter schools, see *Education Code* Section 47606.5.

- Health Sciences High and Middle College HSHMC Board Meeting Agenda Tuesday April 22, 2025 at 9:30 AM NOTE: As a reminder, the superintendent of a school district or COE must respond, in writing, to comments received by the applicable committees identified in the Education Code sections listed above. This includes the parent advisory committee and may include the English learner parent advisory committee and, as of July 1, 2024, the student advisory committee, as applicable.

Instructions

Respond to the prompts as follows:

A summary of the process used to engage educational partners in the development of the LCAP.

School districts and county offices of education must, at a minimum, consult with teachers, principals, administrators, other school personnel, local bargaining units, parents, and students in the development of the LCAP.

Charter schools must, at a minimum, consult with teachers, principals, administrators, other school personnel, parents, and students in the development of the LCAP.

An LEA receiving Equity Multiplier funds must also consult with educational partners at schools generating Equity Multiplier funds in the development of the LCAP, specifically, in the development of the required focus goal for each applicable school.

Complete the table as follows:

Educational Partners

Identify the applicable educational partner(s) or group(s) that were engaged in the development of the LCAP.

Process for Engagement

Describe the engagement process used by the LEA to involve the identified educational partner(s) in the development of the LCAP. At a minimum, the LEA must describe how it met its obligation to consult with all statutorily required educational partners, as applicable to the type of LEA.

- A sufficient response to this prompt must include general information about the timeline of the process and meetings or other engagement strategies with educational partners. A response may also include information about an LEA's philosophical approach to engaging its educational partners.
- An LEA receiving Equity Multiplier funds must also include a summary of how it consulted with educational partners at schools generating Equity Multiplier funds in the development of the LCAP, specifically, in the development of the required focus goal for each applicable school.

A description of how the adopted LCAP was influenced by the feedback provided by educational partners.

Describe any goals, metrics, actions, or budgeted expenditures in the LCAP that were influenced by or developed in response to the educational partner feedback.

Health Sciences High and Middle College - HSHMC Board Meeting - Agenda - Tuesday April 22, 2025 at 9:30 AM A sufficient response to this prompt will provide educational partners and the public with clear, specific information about how the engagement process influenced the development of the LCAP. This may include a description of how the LEA prioritized requests of educational partners within the context of the budgetary resources available or otherwise prioritized areas of focus within the LCAP.

- An LEA receiving Equity Multiplier funds must include a description of how the consultation with educational partners at schools
 generating Equity Multiplier funds influenced the development of the adopted LCAP.
- For the purposes of this prompt, this may also include, but is not necessarily limited to:
 - Inclusion of a goal or decision to pursue a Focus Goal (as described below)
 - Inclusion of metrics other than the statutorily required metrics
 - Determination of the target outcome on one or more metrics
 - Inclusion of performance by one or more student groups in the Measuring and Reporting Results subsection
 - Inclusion of action(s) or a group of actions
 - Elimination of action(s) or group of actions
 - Changes to the level of proposed expenditures for one or more actions
 - Inclusion of action(s) as contributing to increased or improved services for unduplicated students
 - Analysis of effectiveness of the specific actions to achieve the goal
 - Analysis of material differences in expenditures
 - Analysis of changes made to a goal for the ensuing LCAP year based on the annual update process
 - Analysis of challenges or successes in the implementation of actions

Goals and Actions

Purpose

Well-developed goals will clearly communicate to educational partners what the LEA plans to accomplish, what the LEA plans to do in order to accomplish the goal, and how the LEA will know when it has accomplished the goal. A goal statement, associated metrics and expected outcomes, and the actions included in the goal must be in alignment. The explanation for why the LEA included a goal is an opportunity for LEAs to clearly communicate to educational partners and the public why, among the various strengths and areas for improvement highlighted by performance data and strategies and actions that could be pursued, the LEA decided to pursue this goal, and the related metrics, expected outcomes, actions, and expenditures.

A well-developed goal can be focused on the performance relative to a metric or metrics for all students, a specific student group(s), narrowing performance gaps, or implementing programs or strategies expected to impact outcomes. LEAs should assess the performance of their student groups when developing goals and the related actions to achieve such goals.

Requirements and Instructions

LEAs should prioritize the goals, specific actions, and related expenditures included within the LCAP within one or more state priorities. LEAs must consider performance on the state and local indicators, including their locally collected and reported data for the local indicators that are included in the Dashboard, in determining whether and how to prioritize its goals within the LCAP. As previously stated, strategic planning that

Health Sciences High and Middle College - HSHMC Board Meeting - Agenda - Tuesday April 22, 2025 at 9:30 AM is comprehensive connects budgetary decisions to teaching and learning performance data. LEAs should continually evaluate the hard choices they make about the use of limited resources to meet student and community needs to ensure opportunities and outcomes are improved for all students, and to address and reduce disparities in opportunities and outcomes between student groups indicated by the Dashboard.

In order to support prioritization of goals, the LCAP template provides LEAs with the option of developing three different kinds of goals:

- Focus Goal: A Focus Goal is relatively more concentrated in scope and may focus on a fewer number of metrics to measure improvement. A Focus Goal statement will be time bound and make clear how the goal is to be measured.
 - All Equity Multiplier goals must be developed as focus goals. For additional information, see Required Focus Goal(s) for LEAs Receiving Equity Multiplier Funding below.
- Broad Goal: A Broad Goal is relatively less concentrated in its scope and may focus on improving performance across a wide range of metrics.
- Maintenance of Progress Goal: A Maintenance of Progress Goal includes actions that may be ongoing without significant changes and allows an LEA to track performance on any metrics not addressed in the other goals of the LCAP.

Requirement to Address the LCFF State Priorities

At a minimum, the LCAP must address all LCFF priorities and associated metrics articulated in *EC* sections 52060(d) and 52066(d), as applicable to the LEA. The <u>LCFF State Priorities Summary</u> provides a summary of *EC* sections 52060(d) and 52066(d) to aid in the development of the LCAP.

Respond to the following prompts, as applicable:

Focus Goal(s)

Description

The description provided for a Focus Goal must be specific, measurable, and time bound.

- An LEA develops a Focus Goal to address areas of need that may require or benefit from a more specific and data intensive approach.
- The Focus Goal can explicitly reference the metric(s) by which achievement of the goal will be measured and the time frame according to which the LEA expects to achieve the goal.

Type of Goal

Identify the type of goal being implemented as a Focus Goal.

State Priorities addressed by this goal.

Health Sciences High and Middle College - HSHMC Board Meeting - Agenda - Tuesday April 22, 2025 at 9:30 AM Identify each of the state priorities that this goal is intended to address.

An explanation of why the LEA has developed this goal.

Explain why the LEA has chosen to prioritize this goal.

- An explanation must be based on Dashboard data or other locally collected data.
- LEAs must describe how the LEA identified this goal for focused attention, including relevant consultation with educational partners.
- LEAs are encouraged to promote transparency and understanding around the decision to pursue a focus goal.

Required Focus Goal(s) for LEAs Receiving Equity Multiplier Funding

Description

LEAs receiving Equity Multiplier funding must include one or more focus goals for each school generating Equity Multiplier funding. In addition to addressing the focus goal requirements described above, LEAs must adhere to the following requirements.

Focus goals for Equity Multiplier schoolsites must address the following:

(A) All student groups that have the lowest performance level on one or more state indicators on the Dashboard, and

(B) Any underlying issues in the credentialing, subject matter preparation, and retention of the school's educators, if applicable.

- Focus Goals for each and every Equity Multiplier schoolsite must identify specific metrics for each identified student group, as applicable.
- An LEA may create a single goal for multiple Equity Multiplier schoolsites if those schoolsites have the same student group(s) performing at the lowest performance level on one or more state indicators on the Dashboard or, experience similar issues in the credentialing, subject matter preparation, and retention of the school's educators.
 - When creating a single goal for multiple Equity Multiplier schoolsites, the goal must identify the student groups and the performance levels on the Dashboard that the Focus Goal is addressing; or,
 - The common issues the schoolsites are experiencing in credentialing, subject matter preparation, and retention of the school's educators, if applicable.

Type of Goal

Identify the type of goal being implemented as an Equity Multiplier Focus Goal.

State Priorities addressed by this goal.

Health Sciences High and Middle College - HSHMC Board Meeting - Agenda - Tuesday April 22, 2025 at 9:30 AM Identify each of the state priorities that this goal is intended to address.

An explanation of why the LEA has developed this goal.

Explain why the LEA has chosen to prioritize this goal.

- An explanation must be based on Dashboard data or other locally collected data.
- LEAs must describe how the LEA identified this goal for focused attention, including relevant consultation with educational partners.
- LEAs are encouraged to promote transparency and understanding around the decision to pursue a focus goal.
- In addition to this information, the LEA must also identify:
 - The school or schools to which the goal applies

LEAs are encouraged to approach an Equity Multiplier goal from a wholistic standpoint, considering how the goal might maximize student outcomes through the use of LCFF and other funding in addition to Equity Multiplier funds.

- Equity Multiplier funds must be used to supplement, not supplant, funding provided to Equity Multiplier schoolsites for purposes of the LCFF, the Expanded Learning Opportunities Program (ELO-P), the Literacy Coaches and Reading Specialists (LCRS) Grant Program, and/or the California Community Schools Partnership Program (CCSPP).
- This means that Equity Multiplier funds must not be used to replace funding that an Equity Multiplier schoolsite would otherwise
 receive to implement LEA-wide actions identified in the LCAP or that an Equity Multiplier schoolsite would otherwise receive to
 implement provisions of the ELO-P, the LCRS, and/or the CCSPP.

Note: <u>EC Section 42238.024(b)(1)</u> requires that Equity Multiplier funds be used for the provision of evidence-based services and supports for students. Evidence-based services and supports are based on objective evidence that has informed the design of the service or support and/or guides the modification of those services and supports. Evidence-based supports and strategies are most commonly based on educational research and/or metrics of LEA, school, and/or student performance.

Broad Goal

Description

Describe what the LEA plans to achieve through the actions included in the goal.

• The description of a broad goal will be clearly aligned with the expected measurable outcomes included for the goal.

Health Sciences High and Middle College - HSHMC Board Meeting - Agenda - Tuesday April 22, 2025 at 9:30 AM The goal description organizes the actions and expected outcomes in a cohesive and consistent manner.

• A goal description is specific enough to be measurable in either quantitative or qualitative terms. A broad goal is not as specific as a focus goal. While it is specific enough to be measurable, there are many different metrics for measuring progress toward the goal.

Type of Goal

Identify the type of goal being implemented as a Broad Goal.

State Priorities addressed by this goal.

Identify each of the state priorities that this goal is intended to address.

An explanation of why the LEA has developed this goal.

Explain why the LEA developed this goal and how the actions and metrics grouped together will help achieve the goal.

Maintenance of Progress Goal

Description

Describe how the LEA intends to maintain the progress made in the LCFF State Priorities not addressed by the other goals in the LCAP.

- Use this type of goal to address the state priorities and applicable metrics not addressed within the other goals in the LCAP.
- The state priorities and metrics to be addressed in this section are those for which the LEA, in consultation with educational partners, has
 determined to maintain actions and monitor progress while focusing implementation efforts on the actions covered by other goals in the
 LCAP.

Type of Goal

Identify the type of goal being implemented as a Maintenance of Progress Goal.

State Priorities addressed by this goal.

Identify each of the state priorities that this goal is intended to address.

An explanation of why the LEA has developed this goal.

Explain how the actions will sustain the progress exemplified by the related metrics.

Measuring and Reporting Results:

Health Sciences High and Middle College - HSHMC Board Meeting - Agenda - Tuesday April 22, 2025 at 9:30 AM For each LCAP year, identify the metric(s) that the LEA will use to track progress toward the expected outcomes.

- LEAs must identify metrics for specific student groups, as appropriate, including expected outcomes that address and reduce disparities in outcomes between student groups.
- The metrics may be quantitative or qualitative; but at minimum, an LEA's LCAP must include goals that are measured using all of the applicable metrics for the related state priorities, in each LCAP year, as applicable to the type of LEA.
- To the extent a state priority does not specify one or more metrics (e.g., implementation of state academic content and performance standards), the LEA must identify a metric to use within the LCAP. For these state priorities, LEAs are encouraged to use metrics based on or reported through the relevant local indicator self-reflection tools within the Dashboard.
- **Required metrics for LEA-wide actions:** For each action identified as 1) contributing towards the requirement to increase or improve services for foster youth, English learners, including long-term English learners, and low-income students and 2) being provided on an LEA-wide basis, the LEA must identify one or more metrics to monitor the effectiveness of the action and its budgeted expenditures.
 - These required metrics may be identified within the action description or the first prompt in the increased or improved services section, however the description must clearly identify the metric(s) being used to monitor the effectiveness of the action and the action(s) that the metric(s) apply to.
- **Required metrics for Equity Multiplier goals**: For each Equity Multiplier goal, the LEA must identify:
 - The specific metrics for each identified student group at each specific schoolsite, as applicable, to measure the progress toward the goal, and/or
 - The specific metrics used to measure progress in meeting the goal related to credentialing, subject matter preparation, or educator retention at each specific schoolsite.
- **Required metrics for actions supported by LREBG funds**: To implement the requirements of *EC* Section 52064.4, LEAs with unexpended LREBG funds must include at least one metric to monitor the impact of each action funded with LREBG funds included in the goal.
 - The metrics being used to monitor the impact of each action funded with LREBG funds are not required to be new metrics; they may be metrics that are already being used to measure progress towards goals and actions included in the LCAP.

Complete the table as follows:

Metric #

• Enter the metric number.

Metric

Health Sciences High and Middle College - HSHMC Board Meeting - Agenda - Tuesday April 22, 2025 at 9:30 AM Identify the standard of measure being used to determine progress towards the goal and/or to measure the effectiveness of one or more actions associated with the goal.

Baseline

- Enter the baseline when completing the LCAP for 2024–25.
 - Use the most recent data associated with the metric available at the time of adoption of the LCAP for the first year of the threeyear plan. LEAs may use data as reported on the 2023 Dashboard for the baseline of a metric only if that data represents the most recent available data (e.g., high school graduation rate).
 - Using the most recent data available may involve reviewing data the LEA is preparing for submission to the California Longitudinal 0 Pupil Achievement Data System (CALPADS) or data that the LEA has recently submitted to CALPADS.
 - Indicate the school year to which the baseline data applies. Ο
 - The baseline data must remain unchanged throughout the three-year LCAP. Ο
 - This requirement is not intended to prevent LEAs from revising the baseline data if it is necessary to do so. For example, if an LEA identifies that its data collection practices for a particular metric are leading to inaccurate data and revises its practice to obtain accurate data, it would also be appropriate for the LEA to revise the baseline data to align with the more accurate data process and report its results using the accurate data.
 - If an LEA chooses to revise its baseline data, then, at a minimum, it must clearly identify the change as part of its response to the description of changes prompt in the Goal Analysis for the goal. LEAs are also strongly encouraged to involve their educational partners in the decision of whether or not to revise a baseline and to communicate the proposed change to their educational partners.
 - Note for Charter Schools: Charter schools developing a one- or two-year LCAP may identify a new baseline each year, as 0 applicable.

Year 1 Outcome

- When completing the LCAP for 2025–26, enter the most recent data available. Indicate the school year to which the data applies.
 - Note for Charter Schools: Charter schools developing a one-year LCAP may provide the Year 1 Outcome when completing the 0 LCAP for both 2025–26 and 2026–27 or may provide the Year 1 Outcome for 2025–26 and provide the Year 2 Outcome for 2026– 27.

Year 2 Outcome

When completing the LCAP for 2026–27, enter the most recent data available. Indicate the school year to which the data applies.

Note for Charter Schools: Charter schools developing a one-year LCAP may identify the Year 2 Outcome as not applicable when completing the LCAP for 2026–27 or may provide the Year 2 Outcome for 2026–27.

Target for Year 3 Outcome

- When completing the first year of the LCAP, enter the target outcome for the relevant metric the LEA expects to achieve by the end of the three-year LCAP cycle.
 - Note for Charter Schools: Charter schools developing a one- or two-year LCAP may identify a Target for Year 1 or Target for Year 2, as applicable.

Current Difference from Baseline

- When completing the LCAP for 2025–26 and 2026–27, enter the current difference between the baseline and the yearly outcome, as applicable.
 - Note for Charter Schools: Charter schools developing a one- or two-year LCAP will identify the current difference between the baseline and the yearly outcome for Year 1 and/or the current difference between the baseline and the yearly outcome for Year 2, as applicable.

Timeline for school districts and COEs for completing the "Measuring and Reporting Results" part of the Goal.

	Metric	Baseline	Year 1 Outcome	Year 2 Outcome	Target for Year 3 Outcome	Current Difference from Baseline
this cor for	ter information in s box when mpleting the LCAP 2024–25 or when ding a new metric.	Enter information in this box when completing the LCAP for 2024–25 or when adding a new metric.	Enter information in this box when completing the LCAP for 2025–26 . Leave blank until then.	Enter information in this box when completing the LCAP for 2026–27 . Leave blank until then.	Enter information in this box when completing the LCAP for 2024–25 or when adding a new metric.	Enter information in this box when completing the LCAP for 2025–26 and 2026–27 . Leave blank until then.

Goal Analysis:

Enter the LCAP Year.

Using actual annual measurable outcome data, including data from the Dashboard, analyze whether the planned actions were effective towards achieving the goal. "Effective" means the degree to which the planned actions were successful in producing the target result. Respond to the prompts as instructed.

Note: When completing the 2024–25 LCAP, use the 2023–24 Local Control and Accountability Plan Annual Update template to complete the Goal Analysis and identify the Goal Analysis prompts in the 2024–25 LCAP as "Not Applicable." 2025-26 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Health Sciences High and Middle College Page 65 of 8

A description of overall implementation, including any substantive differences in planned actions and actual implementation of these actions, and any relevant challenges and successes experienced with implementation.

- Describe the overall implementation of the actions to achieve the articulated goal, including relevant challenges and successes experienced with implementation.
 - Include a discussion of relevant challenges and successes experienced with the implementation process.
 - This discussion must include any instance where the LEA did not implement a planned action or implemented a planned action in a manner that differs substantively from how it was described in the adopted LCAP.

An explanation of material differences between Budgeted Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures and/or Planned Percentages of Improved Services and Estimated Actual Percentages of Improved Services.

• Explain material differences between Budgeted Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures and between the Planned Percentages of Improved Services and Estimated Actual Percentages of Improved Services, as applicable. Minor variances in expenditures or percentages do not need to be addressed, and a dollar-for-dollar accounting is not required.

A description of the effectiveness or ineffectiveness of the specific actions to date in making progress toward the goal.

- Describe the effectiveness or ineffectiveness of the specific actions to date in making progress toward the goal. "Effectiveness" means the degree to which the actions were successful in producing the target result and "ineffectiveness" means that the actions did not produce any significant or targeted result.
 - In some cases, not all actions in a goal will be intended to improve performance on all of the metrics associated with the goal.
 - When responding to this prompt, LEAs may assess the effectiveness of a single action or group of actions within the goal in the context of performance on a single metric or group of specific metrics within the goal that are applicable to the action(s). Grouping actions with metrics will allow for more robust analysis of whether the strategy the LEA is using to impact a specified set of metrics is working and increase transparency for educational partners. LEAs are encouraged to use such an approach when goals include multiple actions and metrics that are not closely associated.
 - Beginning with the development of the 2024–25 LCAP, the LEA must change actions that have not proven effective over a threeyear period.

A description of any changes made to the planned goal, metrics, target outcomes, or actions for the coming year that resulted from reflections on prior practice.

- Describe any changes made to this goal, expected outcomes, metrics, or actions to achieve this goal as a result of this analysis and analysis of the data provided in the Dashboard or other local data, as applicable.
 - As noted above, beginning with the development of the 2024–25 LCAP, the LEA must change actions that have not proven effective over a three-year period. For actions that have been identified as ineffective, the LEA must identify the ineffective action and must include a description of the following:

- Health Sciences High and Middle College HSHMC Board Meeting Agenda Tuesday April 22, 2025 at 9:30 AM The reasons for the ineffectiveness, and
- How changes to the action will result in a new or strengthened approach.

Actions:

Complete the table as follows. Add additional rows as necessary.

Action #

• Enter the action number.

Title

• Provide a short title for the action. This title will also appear in the action tables.

Description

- Provide a brief description of the action.
 - For actions that contribute to meeting the increased or improved services requirement, the LEA may include an explanation of how each action is principally directed towards and effective in meeting the LEA's goals for unduplicated students, as described in the instructions for the Increased or Improved Services for Foster Youth, English Learners, and Low-Income Students section.
 - As previously noted, for each action identified as 1) contributing towards the requirement to increase or improve services for foster youth, English learners, including long-term English learners, and low-income students and 2) being provided on an LEA-wide basis, the LEA must identify one or more metrics to monitor the effectiveness of the action and its budgeted expenditures.
 - These required metrics may be identified within the action description or the first prompt in the increased or improved services section; however, the description must clearly identify the metric(s) being used to monitor the effectiveness of the action and the action(s) that the metric(s) apply to.

Total Funds

• Enter the total amount of expenditures associated with this action. Budgeted expenditures from specific fund sources will be provided in the action tables.

Contributing

- Indicate whether the action contributes to meeting the increased or improved services requirement as described in the Increased or Improved Services section using a "Y" for Yes or an "N" for No.
 - Note: for each such contributing action, the LEA will need to provide additional information in the Increased or Improved Services section to address the requirements in *California Code of Regulations*, Title 5 [5 *CCR*] Section 15496 in the Increased or Improved Services section of the LCAP.

Actions for Foster Youth: School districts, COEs, and charter schools that have a numerically significant foster youth student subgroup are encouraged to include specific actions in the LCAP designed to meet needs specific to foster youth students.

Required Actions

For English Learners and Long-Term English Learners

- LEAs with 30 or more English learners and/or 15 or more long-term English learners must include specific actions in the LCAP related to, at a minimum:
 - o Language acquisition programs, as defined in EC Section 306, provided to students, and
 - Professional development for teachers.
 - If an LEA has both 30 or more English learners and 15 or more long-term English learners, the LEA must include actions for both English learners and long-term English learners.

For Technical Assistance

LEAs eligible for technical assistance pursuant to EC sections 47607.3, 52071, 52071.5, 52072, or 52072.5, must include specific
actions within the LCAP related to its implementation of the work underway as part of technical assistance. The most common form of
this technical assistance is frequently referred to as Differentiated Assistance.

For Lowest Performing Dashboard Indicators

- LEAs that have Red Dashboard indicators for (1) a school within the LEA, (2) a student group within the LEA, and/or (3) a student group within any school within the LEA must include one or more specific actions within the LCAP:
 - The specific action(s) must be directed towards the identified student group(s) and/or school(s) and must address the identified state indicator(s) for which the student group or school received the lowest performance level on the 2023 Dashboard. Each student group and/or school that receives the lowest performance level on the 2023 Dashboard must be addressed by one or more actions.
 - These required actions will be effective for the three-year LCAP cycle.

For LEAs With Unexpended LREBG Funds

- To implement the requirements of EC Section 52064.4, LEAs with unexpended LREBG funds must include one or more actions supported with LREBG funds within the 2025–26, 2026–27, and 2027–28 LCAPs, as applicable to the LEA. Actions funded with LREBG funds must remain in the LCAP until the LEA has expended the remainder of its LREBG funds, after which time the actions may be removed from the LCAP.
 - Prior to identifying the actions included in the LCAP the LEA is required to conduct a needs assessment pursuant to <u>EC Section</u> <u>32526(d)</u>. For information related to the required needs assessment please see the Program Information tab on the <u>LREBG</u>

Health Sciences High and Middle College - HSHMC Board Meeting - Agenda - Tuesday April 22, 2025 at 9:30 AM Program Information web page. Additional information about the needs assessment and evidence-based resources for the LREBG may be found on the <u>California Statewide System of Support LREBG Resources</u> web page. The required LREBG needs assessment may be part of the LEAs regular needs assessment for the LCAP if it meets the requirements of *EC* Section 32526(d).

- School districts receiving technical assistance and COEs providing technical assistance are encouraged to use the technical assistance process to support the school district in conducting the required needs assessment, the selection of actions funded by the LREBG and/or the evaluation of implementation of the actions required as part of the LCAP annual update process.
- As a reminder, LREBG funds must be used to implement one or more of the purposes articulated in <u>EC Section 32526(c)(2)</u>.
- LEAs with unexpended LREBG funds must include one or more actions supported by LREBG funds within the LCAP. For each
 action supported by LREBG funding the action description must:
 - Identify the action as an LREBG action;
 - Include an explanation of how research supports the selected action;
 - Identify the metric(s) being used to monitor the impact of the action; and
 - Identify the amount of LREBG funds being used to support the action.

Increased or Improved Services for Foster Youth, English Learners, and Low-Income Students

Purpose

A well-written Increased or Improved Services section provides educational partners with a comprehensive description, within a single dedicated section, of how an LEA plans to increase or improve services for its unduplicated students as defined in *EC* Section 42238.02 in grades TK–12 as compared to all students in grades TK–12, as applicable, and how LEA-wide or schoolwide actions identified for this purpose meet regulatory requirements. Descriptions provided should include sufficient detail yet be sufficiently succinct to promote a broader understanding of educational partners to facilitate their ability to provide input. An LEA's description in this section must align with the actions included in the Goals and Actions section as contributing.

Please Note: For the purpose of meeting the Increased or Improved Services requirement and consistent with *EC* Section 42238.02, long-term English learners are included in the English learner student group.

Statutory Requirements

An LEA is required to demonstrate in its LCAP how it is increasing or improving services for its students who are foster youth, English learners, and/or low-income, collectively referred to as unduplicated students, as compared to the services provided to all students in proportion to the increase in funding it receives based on the number and concentration of unduplicated students in the LEA (*EC* Section 42238.07[a][1], *EC*

2025-26 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Health Sciences High and Middle College

Section 52064[b][8][B]; 5 CCR Section 15496[a]). This proportionality percentage is also known as the "minimum proportionality percentage" or "MPP." The manner in which an LEA demonstrates it is meeting its MPP is two-fold: (1) through the expenditure of LCFF funds or through the identification of a Planned Percentage of Improved Services as documented in the Contributing Actions Table, and (2) through the explanations provided in the Increased or Improved Services for Foster Youth, English Learners, and Low-Income Students section.

To improve services means to grow services in quality and to increase services means to grow services in quantity. Services are increased or improved by those actions in the LCAP that are identified in the Goals and Actions section as contributing to the increased or improved services requirement, whether they are provided across the entire LEA (LEA-wide action), provided to an entire school (Schoolwide action), or solely provided to one or more unduplicated student group(s) (Limited action).

Therefore, for any action contributing to meet the increased or improved services requirement, the LEA must include an explanation of:

- How the action is increasing or improving services for the unduplicated student group(s) (Identified Needs and Action Design), and
- How the action meets the LEA's goals for its unduplicated pupils in the state and any local priority areas (Measurement of Effectiveness).

LEA-wide and Schoolwide Actions

In addition to the above required explanations, LEAs must provide a justification for why an LEA-wide or Schoolwide action is being provided to all students and how the action is intended to improve outcomes for unduplicated student group(s) as compared to all students.

- Conclusory statements that a service will help achieve an expected outcome for the goal, without an explicit connection or further explanation as to how, are not sufficient.
- Further, simply stating that an LEA has a high enrollment percentage of a specific student group or groups does not meet the increased or improved services standard because enrolling students is not the same as serving students.

For School Districts Only

Actions provided on an **LEA-wide** basis at **school districts with an unduplicated pupil percentage of less than 55 percent** must also include a description of how the actions are the most effective use of the funds to meet the district's goals for its unduplicated pupils in the state and any local priority areas. The description must provide the basis for this determination, including any alternatives considered, supporting research, experience, or educational theory.

Actions provided on a **Schoolwide** basis for **schools with less than 40 percent enrollment of unduplicated pupils** must also include a description of how these actions are the most effective use of the funds to meet the district's goals for its unduplicated pupils in the state and any local priority areas. The description must provide the basis for this determination, including any alternatives considered, supporting research, experience, or educational theory.

Requirements and Instructions

Complete the tables as follows:

Total Projected LCFF Supplemental and/or Concentration Grants 2025-26 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Health Sciences High and Middle College

Health Sciences High and Middle College - HSHMC Board Meeting - Agenda - Tuesday April 22, 2025 at 9:30 AM Specify the amount of LCFF supplemental and concentration grant funds the LEA estimates it will receive in the coming year based on the number and concentration of foster youth, English learner, and low-income students. This amount includes the Additional 15 percent LCFF Concentration Grant.

Projected Additional 15 percent LCFF Concentration Grant

• Specify the amount of additional LCFF concentration grant add-on funding, as described in EC Section 42238.02, that the LEA estimates it will receive in the coming year.

Projected Percentage to Increase or Improve Services for the Coming School Year

- Specify the estimated percentage by which services for unduplicated pupils must be increased or improved as compared to the services provided to all students in the LCAP year as calculated pursuant to 5 CCR Section 15496(a)(7).
- LCFF Carryover Percentage
 - Specify the LCFF Carryover Percentage identified in the LCFF Carryover Table. If a carryover percentage is not identified in the LCFF Carryover Table, specify a percentage of zero (0.00%).

LCFF Carryover — Dollar

 Specify the LCFF Carryover — Dollar amount identified in the LCFF Carryover Table. If a carryover amount is not identified in the LCFF Carryover Table, specify an amount of zero (\$0).

Total Percentage to Increase or Improve Services for the Coming School Year

Add the Projected Percentage to Increase or Improve Services for the Coming School Year and the Proportional LCFF Required Carryover Percentage and specify the percentage. This is the LEA's percentage by which services for unduplicated pupils must be increased or improved as compared to the services provided to all students in the LCAP year, as calculated pursuant to 5 CCR Section 15496(a)(7).

Required Descriptions:

LEA-wide and Schoolwide Actions

For each action being provided to an entire LEA or school, provide an explanation of (1) the unique identified need(s) of the unduplicated student group(s) for whom the action is principally directed, (2) how the action is designed to address the identified need(s) and why it is being provided on an LEA or schoolwide basis, and (3) the metric(s) used to measure the effectiveness of the action in improving outcomes for the unduplicated student group(s).

If the LEA has provided this required description in the Action Descriptions, state as such within the table.

Complete the table as follows:

Identified Need(s)

Provide an explanation of the unique identified need(s) of the LEA's unduplicated student group(s) for whom the action is principally directed.

An LEA demonstrates how an action is principally directed towards an unduplicated student group(s) when the LEA explains the need(s), condition(s), or circumstance(s) of the unduplicated student group(s) identified through a needs assessment and how the action addresses them. A meaningful needs assessment includes, at a minimum, analysis of applicable student achievement data and educational partner feedback.

How the Action(s) are Designed to Address Need(s) and Why it is Provided on an LEA-wide or Schoolwide Basis

Provide an explanation of how the action as designed will address the unique identified need(s) of the LEA's unduplicated student group(s) for whom the action is principally directed and the rationale for why the action is being provided on an LEA-wide or schoolwide basis.

- As stated above, conclusory statements that a service will help achieve an expected outcome for the goal, without an explicit connection or further explanation as to how, are not sufficient.
- Further, simply stating that an LEA has a high enrollment percentage of a specific student group or groups does not meet the increased or improved services standard because enrolling students is not the same as serving students.

Metric(s) to Monitor Effectiveness

Identify the metric(s) being used to measure the progress and effectiveness of the action(s).

Note for COEs and Charter Schools: In the case of COEs and charter schools, schoolwide and LEA-wide are considered to be synonymous.

Limited Actions

For each action being solely provided to one or more unduplicated student group(s), provide an explanation of (1) the unique identified need(s) of the unduplicated student group(s) being served, (2) how the action is designed to address the identified need(s), and (3) how the effectiveness of the action in improving outcomes for the unduplicated student group(s) will be measured.

If the LEA has provided the required descriptions in the Action Descriptions, state as such.

Complete the table as follows:

Identified Need(s)

Provide an explanation of the unique need(s) of the unduplicated student group(s) being served identified through the LEA's needs assessment. A meaningful needs assessment includes, at a minimum, analysis of applicable student achievement data and educational partner feedback.

How the Action(s) are Designed to Address Need(s)

Provide an explanation of how the action is designed to address the unique identified need(s) of the unduplicated student group(s) being served.

Health Sciences High and Middle College - HSHMC Board Meeting - Agenda - Tuesday April 22, 2025 at 9:30 AM Metric(s) to Monitor Effectiveness

Identify the metric(s) being used to measure the progress and effectiveness of the action(s).

For any limited action contributing to meeting the increased or improved services requirement that is associated with a Planned Percentage of Improved Services in the Contributing Summary Table rather than an expenditure of LCFF funds, describe the methodology that was used to determine the contribution of the action towards the proportional percentage, as applicable.

- For each action with an identified Planned Percentage of Improved Services, identify the goal and action number and describe the methodology that was used.
- When identifying a Planned Percentage of Improved Services, the LEA must describe the methodology that it used to determine the contribution of the action towards the proportional percentage. The percentage of improved services for an action corresponds to the amount of LCFF funding that the LEA estimates it would expend to implement the action if it were funded.
- For example, an LEA determines that there is a need to analyze data to ensure that instructional aides and expanded learning providers know what targeted supports to provide to students who are foster youth. The LEA could implement this action by hiring additional staff to collect and analyze data and to coordinate supports for students, which, based on the LEA's current pay scale, the LEA estimates would cost \$165,000. Instead, the LEA chooses to utilize a portion of existing staff time to analyze data relating to students who are foster youth. This analysis will then be shared with site principals who will use the data to coordinate services provided by instructional assistants and expanded learning providers to target support to students. In this example, the LEA would divide the estimated cost of \$165,000 by the amount of LCFF Funding identified in the Total Planned Expenditures Table and then convert the quotient to a percentage. This percentage is the Planned Percentage of Improved Services for the action.

Additional Concentration Grant Funding

A description of the plan for how the additional concentration grant add-on funding identified above will be used to increase the number of staff providing direct services to students at schools that have a high concentration (above 55 percent) of foster youth, English learners, and low-income students, as applicable.

An LEA that receives the additional concentration grant add-on described in *EC* Section 42238.02 is required to demonstrate how it is using these funds to increase the number of staff who provide direct services to students at schools with an enrollment of unduplicated students that is greater than 55 percent as compared to the number of staff who provide direct services to students at schools with an enrollment of unduplicated students that is equal to or less than 55 percent. The staff who provide direct services to students must be certificated staff and/or classified staff employed by the LEA; classified staff includes custodial staff.

Provide the following descriptions, as applicable to the LEA:

• An LEA that does not receive a concentration grant or the concentration grant add-on must indicate that a response to this prompt is not applicable.

- Health Sciences High and Middle College HSHMC Board Meeting Agenda Tuesday April 22, 2025 at 9:30 AM Identify the goal and action numbers of the actions in the LCAP that the LEA is implementing to meet the requirement to increase the number of staff who provide direct services to students at schools with an enrollment of unduplicated students that is greater than 55 percent.
- An LEA that does not have comparison schools from which to describe how it is using the concentration grant add-on funds, such as a single-school LEA or an LEA that only has schools with an enrollment of unduplicated students that is greater than 55 percent, must describe how it is using the funds to increase the number of credentialed staff, classified staff, or both, including custodial staff, who provide direct services to students at selected schools and the criteria used to determine which schools require additional staffing support.
- In the event that an additional concentration grant add-on is not sufficient to increase staff providing direct services to students at a school with an enrollment of unduplicated students that is greater than 55 percent, the LEA must describe how it is using the funds to retain staff providing direct services to students at a school with an enrollment of unduplicated students that is greater than 55 percent.

Complete the table as follows:

- Provide the staff-to-student ratio of classified staff providing direct services to students with a concentration of unduplicated students that is 55 percent or less and the staff-to-student ratio of classified staff providing direct services to students at schools with a concentration of unduplicated students that is greater than 55 percent, as applicable to the LEA.
 - The LEA may group its schools by grade span (Elementary, Middle/Junior High, and High Schools), as applicable to the LEA. 0
 - The staff-to-student ratio must be based on the number of full-time equivalent (FTE) staff and the number of enrolled students as 0 counted on the first Wednesday in October of each year.
- Provide the staff-to-student ratio of certificated staff providing direct services to students at schools with a concentration of unduplicated students that is 55 percent or less and the staff-to-student ratio of certificated staff providing direct services to students at schools with a concentration of unduplicated students that is greater than 55 percent, as applicable to the LEA.
 - The LEA may group its schools by grade span (Elementary, Middle/Junior High, and High Schools), as applicable to the LEA. 0
 - The staff-to-student ratio must be based on the number of FTE staff and the number of enrolled students as counted on the first 0 Wednesday in October of each year.

Action Tables

Complete the Total Planned Expenditures Table for each action in the LCAP. The information entered into this table will automatically populate the other Action Tables. Information is only entered into the Total Planned Expenditures Table, the Annual Update Table, the Contributing Actions Annual Update Table, and the LCFF Carryover Table. The word "input" has been added to column headers to aid in identifying the column(s) where information will be entered. Information is not entered on the remaining Action tables.

The following tables are required to be included as part of the LCAP adopted by the local governing board or governing body: 2025-26 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Health Sciences High and Middle College

- Table 1: Total Planned Expenditures Table (for the coming LCAP Year)
- Table 2: Contributing Actions Table (for the coming LCAP Year)
- Table 3: Annual Update Table (for the current LCAP Year)
- Table 4: Contributing Actions Annual Update Table (for the current LCAP Year)
- Table 5: LCFF Carryover Table (for the current LCAP Year)

Note: The coming LCAP Year is the year that is being planned for, while the current LCAP year is the current year of implementation. For example, when developing the 2024–25 LCAP, 2024–25 will be the coming LCAP Year and 2023–24 will be the current LCAP Year.

Total Planned Expenditures Table

In the Total Planned Expenditures Table, input the following information for each action in the LCAP for that applicable LCAP year:

- LCAP Year: Identify the applicable LCAP Year.
- 1. Projected LCFF Base Grant: Provide the total amount estimated LCFF entitlement for the coming school year, excluding the supplemental and concentration grants and the add-ons for the Targeted Instructional Improvement Block Grant program, the former Home-to-School Transportation program, and the Small School District Transportation program, pursuant to 5 CCR Section 15496(a)(8). Note that the LCFF Base Grant for purposes of the LCAP also includes the Necessary Small Schools and Economic Recovery Target allowances for school districts, and County Operations Grant for COEs.

See *EC* sections 2574 (for COEs) and 42238.02 (for school districts and charter schools), as applicable, for LCFF entitlement calculations.

- 2. Projected LCFF Supplemental and/or Concentration Grants: Provide the total amount of LCFF supplemental and concentration
 grants estimated on the basis of the number and concentration of unduplicated students for the coming school year.
- 3. Projected Percentage to Increase or Improve Services for the Coming School Year: This percentage will not be entered; it is calculated based on the Projected LCFF Base Grant and the Projected LCFF Supplemental and/or Concentration Grants, pursuant to 5 *CCR* Section 15496(a)(8). This is the percentage by which services for unduplicated pupils must be increased or improved as compared to the services provided to all students in the coming LCAP year.
- LCFF Carryover Percentage: Specify the LCFF Carryover Percentage identified in the LCFF Carryover Table from the prior LCAP year. If a carryover percentage is not identified in the LCFF Carryover Table, specify a percentage of zero (0.00%).
- Total Percentage to Increase or Improve Services for the Coming School Year: This percentage will not be entered; it is calculated based on the Projected Percentage to Increase or Improve Services for the Coming School Year and the LCFF Carryover —

Health Sciences High and Middle College - HSHMC Board Meeting - Agenda - Tuesday April 22, 2025 at 9:30 AM Percentage. This is the percentage by which the LEA must increase or improve services for unduplicated pupils as compared to the services provided to all students in the coming LCAP year.

- **Goal #**: Enter the LCAP Goal number for the action.
- Action #: Enter the action's number as indicated in the LCAP Goal.
- Action Title: Provide a title of the action.
- **Student Group(s)**: Indicate the student group or groups who will be the primary beneficiary of the action by entering "All," or by entering a specific student group or groups.
- Contributing to Increased or Improved Services?: Type "Yes" if the action is included as contributing to meeting the increased or improved services requirement; OR, type "No" if the action is **not** included as contributing to meeting the increased or improved services requirement.
- If "Yes" is entered into the Contributing column, then complete the following columns:
 - Scope: The scope of an action may be LEA-wide (i.e., districtwide, countywide, or charterwide), schoolwide, or limited. An action that is LEA-wide in scope upgrades the entire educational program of the LEA. An action that is schoolwide in scope upgrades the entire educational program of a single school. An action that is limited in its scope is an action that serves only one or more unduplicated student groups.
 - Unduplicated Student Group(s): Regardless of scope, contributing actions serve one or more unduplicated student groups. Indicate one or more unduplicated student groups for whom services are being increased or improved as compared to what all students receive.
 - Location: Identify the location where the action will be provided. If the action is provided to all schools within the LEA, the LEA must indicate "All Schools." If the action is provided to specific schools within the LEA or specific grade spans only, the LEA must enter "Specific Schools" or "Specific Grade Spans." Identify the individual school or a subset of schools or grade spans (e.g., all high schools or grades transitional kindergarten through grade five), as appropriate.
- **Time Span**: Enter "ongoing" if the action will be implemented for an indeterminate period of time. Otherwise, indicate the span of time for which the action will be implemented. For example, an LEA might enter "1 Year," or "2 Years," or "6 Months."
- **Total Personnel**: Enter the total amount of personnel expenditures utilized to implement this action.
- **Total Non-Personnel**: This amount will be automatically calculated based on information provided in the Total Personnel column and the Total Funds column.

- LCFF Funds: Enter the total amount of LCFF funds utilized to implement this action, if any. LCFF funds include all funds that make up an LEA's total LCFF target (i.e., base grant, grade span adjustment, supplemental grant, concentration grant, Targeted Instructional Improvement Block Grant, and Home-To-School Transportation).
 - Note: For an action to contribute towards meeting the increased or improved services requirement, it must include some measure of LCFF funding. The action may also include funding from other sources, however the extent to which an action contributes to meeting the increased or improved services requirement is based on the LCFF funding being used to implement the action.
- Other State Funds: Enter the total amount of Other State Funds utilized to implement this action, if any.
 - Note: Equity Multiplier funds must be included in the "Other State Funds" category, not in the "LCFF Funds" category. As a reminder, Equity Multiplier funds must be used to supplement, not supplant, funding provided to Equity Multiplier schoolsites for purposes of the LCFF, the ELO-P, the LCRS, and/or the CCSPP. This means that Equity Multiplier funds must not be used to replace funding that an Equity Multiplier schoolsite would otherwise receive to implement LEA-wide actions identified in the LEA's LCAP or that an Equity Multiplier schoolsite would otherwise receive to implement provisions of the ELO-P, the LCRS, and/or the CCSPP.
- Local Funds: Enter the total amount of Local Funds utilized to implement this action, if any.
- Federal Funds: Enter the total amount of Federal Funds utilized to implement this action, if any.
- Total Funds: This amount is automatically calculated based on amounts entered in the previous four columns.
- Planned Percentage of Improved Services: For any action identified as contributing, being provided on a Limited basis to unduplicated students, and that does not have funding associated with the action, enter the planned quality improvement anticipated for the action as a percentage rounded to the nearest hundredth (0.00%). A limited action is an action that only serves foster youth, English learners, and/or low-income students.
 - As noted in the instructions for the Increased or Improved Services section, when identifying a Planned Percentage of Improved Services, the LEA must describe the methodology that it used to determine the contribution of the action towards the proportional percentage. The percentage of improved services for an action corresponds to the amount of LCFF funding that the LEA estimates it would expend to implement the action if it were funded.

For example, an LEA determines that there is a need to analyze data to ensure that instructional aides and expanded learning providers know what targeted supports to provide to students who are foster youth. The LEA could implement this action by hiring additional staff to collect and analyze data and to coordinate supports for students, which, based on the LEA's current pay scale, the LEA estimates would cost \$165,000. Instead, the LEA chooses to utilize a portion of existing staff time to analyze data relating to students who are foster youth. This analysis will then be shared with site principals who will use the data to coordinate services provided by instructional assistants and expanded learning providers to target support to students. In this example, the LEA would divide the estimated cost of \$165,000 by the amount of LCFF Funding identified in the Data Entry Table and then convert the quotient to a percentage. This percentage is the Planned Percentage of Improved Services for the action.

2025-26 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Health Sciences High and Middle College

Contributing Actions Table

As noted above, information will not be entered in the Contributing Actions Table; however, the 'Contributing to Increased or Improved Services?' column will need to be checked to ensure that only actions with a "Yes" are displaying. If actions with a "No" are displayed or if actions that are contributing are not displaying in the column, use the drop-down menu in the column header to filter only the "Yes" responses.

Annual Update Table

In the Annual Update Table, provide the following information for each action in the LCAP for the relevant LCAP year:

• Estimated Actual Expenditures: Enter the total estimated actual expenditures to implement this action, if any.

Contributing Actions Annual Update Table

In the Contributing Actions Annual Update Table, check the 'Contributing to Increased or Improved Services?' column to ensure that only actions with a "Yes" are displaying. If actions with a "No" are displayed or if actions that are contributing are not displaying in the column, use the drop-down menu in the column header to filter only the "Yes" responses. Provide the following information for each contributing action in the LCAP for the relevant LCAP year:

- 6. Estimated Actual LCFF Supplemental and/or Concentration Grants: Provide the total amount of LCFF supplemental and concentration grants estimated based on the number and concentration of unduplicated students in the current school year.
- Estimated Actual Expenditures for Contributing Actions: Enter the total estimated actual expenditure of LCFF funds used to implement this action, if any.
- Estimated Actual Percentage of Improved Services: For any action identified as contributing, being provided on a Limited basis only to unduplicated students, and that does not have funding associated with the action, enter the total estimated actual quality improvement anticipated for the action as a percentage rounded to the nearest hundredth (0.00%).
 - Building on the example provided above for calculating the Planned Percentage of Improved Services, the LEA in the example implements the action. As part of the annual update process, the LEA reviews implementation and student outcome data and determines that the action was implemented with fidelity and that outcomes for foster youth students improved. The LEA reviews the original estimated cost for the action and determines that had it hired additional staff to collect and analyze data and to coordinate supports for students that estimated actual cost would have been \$169,500 due to a cost of living adjustment. The LEA would divide the estimated actual cost of \$169,500 by the amount of LCFF Funding identified in the Data Entry Table and then convert the quotient to a percentage. This percentage is the Estimated Actual Percentage of Improved Services for the action.

LCFF Carryover Table

• 9. Estimated Actual LCFF Base Grant: Provide the total amount of estimated LCFF Target Entitlement for the current school year, excluding the supplemental and concentration grants and the add-ons for the Targeted Instructional Improvement Block Grant program,

the former Home-to-School Transportation program, and the Small School District Transportation program, pursuant to 5 *CCR* Section 15496(a)(8). Note that the LCFF Base Grant for purposes of the LCAP also includes the Necessary Small School s and Economic Recovery Target allowances for school districts, and County Operations Grant for COEs. See *EC* sections 2574 (for COEs) and 42238.02 (for school districts and charter schools), as applicable, for LCFF entitlement calculations.

10. Total Percentage to Increase or Improve Services for the Current School Year: This percentage will not be entered. The
percentage is calculated based on the amounts of the Estimated Actual LCFF Base Grant (9) and the Estimated Actual LCFF
Supplemental and/or Concentration Grants (6), pursuant to 5 CCR Section 15496(a)(8), plus the LCFF Carryover – Percentage from the
prior year. This is the percentage by which services for unduplicated pupils must be increased or improved as compared to the services
provided to all students in the current LCAP year.

Calculations in the Action Tables

To reduce the duplication of effort of LEAs, the Action Tables include functionality such as pre-population of fields and cells based on the information provided in the Data Entry Table, the Annual Update Summary Table, and the Contributing Actions Table. For transparency, the functionality and calculations used are provided below.

Contributing Actions Table

- 4. Total Planned Contributing Expenditures (LCFF Funds)
 - This amount is the total of the Planned Expenditures for Contributing Actions (LCFF Funds) column.
- 5. Total Planned Percentage of Improved Services
 - This percentage is the total of the Planned Percentage of Improved Services column.
- Planned Percentage to Increase or Improve Services for the coming school year (4 divided by 1, plus 5)
 - This percentage is calculated by dividing the Total Planned Contributing Expenditures (4) by the Projected LCFF Base Grant (1), converting the quotient to a percentage, and adding it to the Total Planned Percentage of Improved Services (5).

Contributing Actions Annual Update Table

Pursuant to *EC* Section 42238.07(c)(2), if the Total Planned Contributing Expenditures (4) is less than the Estimated Actual LCFF Supplemental and Concentration Grants (6), the LEA is required to calculate the difference between the Total Planned Percentage of Improved Services (5) and the Total Estimated Actual Percentage of Improved Services (7). If the Total Planned Contributing Expenditures (4) is equal to or greater than the Estimated Actual LCFF Supplemental and Concentration Grants (6), the Difference Between Planned and Estimated Actual Percentage of Improved Services.

• 6. Estimated Actual LCFF Supplemental and Concentration Grants

This is the total amount of LCFF supplemental and concentration grants the LEA estimates it will actually receive based on the number and concentration of unduplicated students in the current school year.

• 4. Total Planned Contributing Expenditures (LCFF Funds)

- This amount is the total of the Last Year's Planned Expenditures for Contributing Actions (LCFF Funds).
- 7. Total Estimated Actual Expenditures for Contributing Actions
 - This amount is the total of the Estimated Actual Expenditures for Contributing Actions (LCFF Funds).
- Difference Between Planned and Estimated Actual Expenditures for Contributing Actions (Subtract 7 from 4)
 - This amount is the Total Estimated Actual Expenditures for Contributing Actions (7) subtracted from the Total Planned Contributing Expenditures (4).
- 5. Total Planned Percentage of Improved Services (%)
 - This amount is the total of the Planned Percentage of Improved Services column.
- 8. Total Estimated Actual Percentage of Improved Services (%)
 - This amount is the total of the Estimated Actual Percentage of Improved Services column.
- Difference Between Planned and Estimated Actual Percentage of Improved Services (Subtract 5 from 8)
 - This amount is the Total Planned Percentage of Improved Services (5) subtracted from the Total Estimated Actual Percentage of Improved Services (8).

LCFF Carryover Table

- 10. Total Percentage to Increase or Improve Services for the Current School Year (6 divided by 9 plus Carryover %)
 - This percentage is the Estimated Actual LCFF Supplemental and/or Concentration Grants (6) divided by the Estimated Actual LCFF Base Grant (9) plus the LCFF Carryover Percentage from the prior year.
- 11. Estimated Actual Percentage of Increased or Improved Services (7 divided by 9, plus 8)
 - This percentage is the Total Estimated Actual Expenditures for Contributing Actions (7) divided by the LCFF Funding (9), then converting the quotient to a percentage and adding the Total Estimated Actual Percentage of Improved Services (8).
- 12. LCFF Carryover Dollar Amount LCFF Carryover (Subtract 11 from 10 and multiply by 9)

If the Estimated Actual Percentage of Increased or Improved Services (11) is less than the Estimated Actual Percentage to Increase or Improved to carry over LCFF funds.

The amount of LCFF funds is calculated by subtracting the Estimated Actual Percentage to Increase or Improve Services (11) from the Estimated Actual Percentage of Increased or Improved Services (10) and then multiplying by the Estimated Actual LCFF Base Grant (9). This amount is the amount of LCFF funds that is required to be carried over to the coming year.

• 13. LCFF Carryover — Percentage (12 divided by 9)

• This percentage is the unmet portion of the Percentage to Increase or Improve Services that the LEA must carry over into the coming LCAP year. The percentage is calculated by dividing the LCFF Carryover (12) by the LCFF Funding (9).

California Department of Education November 2024